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Uprava drattave HOTELI
Tadeansks 2, Q1B 18099276986, koje zastups predsjednica
upmave, Cecilia Nikoletta Fata i &lan uprave, Soma Zoltin
Dala, dana 16.04.2021_ sastavili su

LIZVIESTAS UPRAYE O STANJU [ POSLOVANIU
GRUPE ZA 2020. GODINE

L OPCT PODACT D PODUZECY

Dionitke draftvo za howlijerstvo 1 rurizam Hoteli Jadran iz
Giradea (dalje: Drutve} nastalo je protvorbom drudtvenog
Hotelsko-turistidkog podnzeéa Iotweli Jadran § upisano u
spis TT-O6/TI66-5, MBS 000040135 dana 5 ofujka
1957.godine. Pretverba == temelji na Odiuel o pretvorbd 1
rjchenju Hrvarskop fonds 2a privatizaciiu od 2 travanja
1986.g0dine, Osnivadke skuplting druftva odrfena jo
0R.11.1996. kada je prhvateno da se Howeli Jadear
pretvore u dionitko druStvs e postanu wiverzalni stijodnik
istoimenog druftvenog poduseés. Temeljni kapital druslva
podijelian je na 107.113 redovaih dionica na ime, svaka u
nominainom nosu od 700,00 kuna.

|

Prafitva ukljnlena « kemsolidaciju, a 1 kojima drudtve o

dan 31122018, godine drfi 100% udjela (u dalinjem
| tekstu: Grupa):

o HOTEL LABINECA d.oo., Jadranska 2, Gradac,

OIB: 82215732082,
JADRAN LAGUNA dowo.,
Gradac, QIB: 56976586870
FARACN doo, Put Vils 1, Trpanj, OIB:
98007195291,

Jadranska 16,

L]

Osnovnn djclatnost Grupe je 55-prufamje ugostiteljsko-
turistitkih ushiga.

Trenutria uprava imenovana jo itk u nijon i stoga jc njihove
vodenje poslova utjecals praktitld na posticdryi kvartal
2020, goding, dok je sve ostale odhke wprave donio
Dia movine tvrtke zalofea je v kovist Bobemian Financing
i temeljem sljedeéem: . Ugover o Jupoprodsji
pomZivarja od 2, tavme 2019, skloplien izmedu
Raiffeisciscn Bank Zt. i Bobemian Finmcing Zit, sva
pm-ainb»eaepmumamenhmimmecinsZrL
Radi namircnja gore navedene trafbite, pokrenuta je aviba
Raiffeizen Bank Zst protiv drastva Howeli Jadean d.d. koja
se vodi pod posloveim brojem OVR-69/2019. 2. Ugovor 0
kupoprodsji pomdivania od 30. svibia 2018. skloplien

TROTILY SADRAX ThL, AAIHANSKA
TRAN HIREMa8091 500103, SWH'T FELLERX; TRGOVACKI SUD U SILITL, Mms:
7,15 DODNICA S¥AKA MIMINALNE VROEDIOST] 7808 KX NAPIERICD

GO BORA: BANTEL S5 UM L1 CZNAKA- e HOUITROTATIL MATICKA

TYRETENA Na MDA ZACIRACKE WOKZE

JADRAN dd. Gradas, | The Managemenl Boad of HOTEL] JADRAN dd,

Gracks, Jadeanska 2, O1B 18099276986, reptesented by the
President of the Management Board, Cecilia Nikoletta Fata
and 8 member of the Management Board, Soma Zoltin
Dala, on 16.04.2021

1. MANAGEMENT REPORT ON THE STATE OF
GROUP AND BUSINESS OPERATIONS FOR 2020

LGENERAL INFORMATION ABOUT THE
GROUP

Joird Stock Company for Hotel and Tourism Hoeli Jadran
from Gradae (hersinafler: the Company) was created by
the tramsfamation of the social Hotel-Tourigt Company
Hoteli Jadran and entered in the Bie TT-96 / 7166-5, MBS
0500401 35 on March 5, 1967, The coaversion & besed on
Deeciston on the transformation and decision of the Croatian
Privatization Fund of 2 Apsil 1996. The [ounding assembly
of the company wes held on Noverber 8, 1996, when it
was accepted that Hoteli Jadran be transformed into a joint
stock compeny and become a universal suoccssor of the
socially-owned company of the same name. The share
capital of the company is divided into 107,115 ordinary
mgistarddmmeachﬁtﬂmmmh:ﬂmuﬂofﬂm
700,00,

Companies inctuded in the consolidation, in which the
compeny on 31.12.2018. holds 100% stake (hersinafier: the

Group):

» HOTEL LABINECA d.o.0., Jadrnska 2, Gradac, OT8:
82215732082,

» JADRAN LAGUNA d.0.0., Jadranska 16, Gredac, OIE:

569765868791
+ FARAON d.o.o., Put Vila 1, Trpanj, O1B: 98007195291,

The main activity of the Group is §5-provision of catering

Current management was appainted only in Seplember and
therefore their management affected practically the bast
quarter of 2020, while all other management Jecigiong
were rendercd by the previous managesnent board.

Panofwmpuu’smmmmgzgcdh&morl
Bohemian Finmneing zt. parsmant to the ollowing:
1.Coatract on Pupchase and Sale of Claims dated April 2,
2019, concluded between Raiffciscisen Bank  Zst, and
Bohemian Financing Zrt., all rights and chligations have
been transfiried to Bohemian Financing Zit. In onder to
settle the above claim, the eaforcement of Raiffidsen Bank
7t was initiated against Hoteli Jadran d.d. which is kept |
onder business number OVR-69201%. 2.Contract ©n

2 CRADC F1R, Ot LI0WTNISl; NGl SO6S4:; DID RADTHT KUNIRY 130008-L 100 LO3T L RRVIEND mmmﬂuﬂnﬂlﬁ

KAPITAL( w3000 XUXA, IFLACEN &

owoweit TEMELIT
NTK HRAYE: CECILIA NINOLETYA FATA, CLAN LPILAYE: 30014 Balil FREDEJEDWEX RABECACHXG
pckava CLANICA: REPUBLIKA HIEVATSRA; B0 FRULIDAIRADSL: (ZNAKA BOOMICE: KIDRSAL,
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izmedu NLB Leasing 0.0, i Bohemian Financing Ztt., | Purchase and Sale of Claims dated May 30, 2018,

| Sva prava | ohveze prenesena su na Bohemian Financing
Zr.. Radi numirenja pore navedeone radhine, pokrenuta je
| ovria NLE Leasing do.o. protiv Hotela Jadean dd. koja se
vodi pod poslovaim brojern OVR-38/2019. i 3, Ugovor o
kupoprodaji potaZivanja od 30. svibmja 2018. sklopljen
fzmedn OL Nebretnine do.o . i Bobemisn Financing Zt..
s»amvaiobvenemmcnamdemianmecmg
Zn, . Radi namirenjn pore nunvedene teaZbine, pokrenuta je
ovtha OL Nedaetning d.o.0, protiv Hotela Jadran d.d. koja |
s vodi pod poslownim beojem OVR-48/2019,

Sukladno gore navedenormn Ugovorims o lapoprodaji
trazbing, novi vieronmik Bohemian Financing Zrustupio je
na mjcsta ovthovediteljn, Ruiffeisen Bank 2 u ovrsi koja
se voui pod brojem QVR-692019 i NLB Leasing d.0.0. i
OL Nekretmine d.o.0.

Organi Drustva:
Up

prava:
I. Cecilia Nikoletta Fata , predsjednik Uprave
2. Soma Zoltin Dala, dan Uptave

Nadzomi pdbor:

1. Diiniet Jullinek, predsjednilc

2. Tamés Szbll3s, zampenik predsjednika
3. Tamas Kantdr, &lan

(ilavna skupéslina: &ne je svi dionitari DuStva.

Naken imenovanja, nova Uprave pokreavla je giclovim
pravna, fmanciizk | kadrovsky reviziin Grope.
Uslijed otefanih 1 beizviesnth  wjeta  peslovanja
uzrokovanih pandemijom COVID-19 i lofin rezuhatima
hiistidke  scemme  to nasljedentrn godcmim
konsolidiranim dugom koji jo nastao prije 2020, odluéeno
je uptavljat trofkovima na centralizirani nadin, Grupe
ofelaric da e l0 omoguéiti  smanjenjc trofkova,
pinkovitiju mobelnost oscblia kaja odgovars tenutnaj vilo
nestabilno]  potrafnji za  smjchtsjuim  kepecitefima |
| powedanje kvalitetc wsluge. Proces rcicnalizacije vapoteo
je 5 preudmanjem zapoelenika druiava koja su u zakupu
| howda Lahineca ¢ Lagunn u Graden i Faraon 1 Trpoju, &
| kasnije mskidom wgovora o zalampu s sadatnjim
| zakupcima |

| Grupa u svwom sastavu ima 3 hotela, = |

SMFTILL JADRAN DO JMIRANSKA 4 GRAINE 210m, &B: [Ae5zieits: MB 2006 {5dc I RASNINL; KTMEKI Z30en L1 00MpaSaT [ [V
TEMELISS

TRAN IERMEHHWILIRIIE]. ST TREOYACKS 319 U SPUITL. MBS

L. DAKHMIC A SYARA NIMINALNE

YRAMEMOATY 70,00 KIDA MRERAIEDRIK
S RANIZL LLINEK: LEI OZSAKA! TOMMMISKITATAUTE: MA 1IMA DREAVA CLAKICAI REFUSS I, NRVATSRA; HD:
HURZE

CDApRA
CYRETENA XA [ i)

concluded between NLB leasing doo. and Bohemian
Financing Zrt, all righis and obligations have been
iransferred 1o Bohemisn Financing Zrt. . In order 1o settio
the above claim, the enforcement of NLE Leasing do.o.
was initiated sgamst Hotel Jadran d.d which is kept under
business  pumber OVR-482019, and 3. Contract on
Purchase and Sake of Claims daed May 30, 2013,
concluded betweep OL Nekretnine d.o.o, and Bohamian
Financing 7rt, all rights and obligatons heve beon
transferred to Bohemian Financing Z1t. Tn order to sctike
the above claim, the enforcemnent of 0L, Nekremine d.0.0.
was nitiated apainst Hotel Jadran dd. which is kept undee
business mumber OVR-48/2019,

Pursusnt to the shove-mentioned Purchase and Sale
Agreements, the new creditor Bohemian Financing Zu,
twok over the position of bailiffy, Raiffeisen Bank Zst in
OVR-6972019 and NLB Leasing d.0.0. and OL Nekretuine
d.oro. in OVR-48/2019.

Comparty bodies:

Management:
1. Cecilia Nikodetta Fata, president
2. Sotna Foltin Dala, member

Supervisory Board:

1. Dandet Jellnck, president

2. Tarnéds S#illdsi, vice-president
3. Tam#s Kimtar, member

General Asscmbly: consists of all sharcholders of the
Company.

Afler the pew mansgement was appomted, they have
initiated a full logal, financial and HR review of the Group.
Duc to the difficult and mcertain business conditions
cansad by the COVID-19 pandemic the poor results of the
bourist season and the inherited vast consolidaied debt
from before 2020, the Company decidd to manege posts in
& centrabized manner. The Group capects hat this will
enable cost reduction, more elficient staff mohility that
mumponmmmcmmvmywlamedamndﬁr
accommosdation capecities and an increase in the quality of
sarvice. The process of raonalization began with the
takeover of cmployees of the companics that leased the
hotels Labineca and Lapuna in Gradsc and Famon in
Tepan, and later the teemination of the leasc agrocments
with the tenants followed.

EVIZNT KOU FRIVEKD N BAWKE ZAGRED By
KAPTFAL: 74900 9000 KL NA, UMLACES 1! CURLONTLIOMIR LIS HA

UPRANE) CECTIIA NIKDAETTA FATA, CLAN LFRAVE) SUMA DALA; FREDGSEMIK VAREORNOG

CIMAKA UMK HANLRA.
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Tablica 1. Pregled kapaciteta / Table 1 Hotel capacities

The Group has 3 hoeels

[  Labinec Laguna o
Kateporija ¢ Categoty hidd *% ek
Sobe / Rooms 216 270 115
Kreveti / Hods 436 580 45
Izver: rjeSenje 0 kategonizactjc / Source: categorization decision
= — - @
2.VLASNICKA STRUKTURA 2, QWNERSHIP STRUCTURE

Temeljni kapital Drudtva ni2 dan 31,12.2020. godine iznosi
74.580.500,00 kn i jjelien je ma 107.015 redovaih
dionics npminalnog iznosa svake dionice po 700,00 Sve
diomice nose oznaky HIDR-R-A i nwitene su u Redovito

tr2ivte Zagrehadlos burze 4.4,
U 2020. godini nije bilo stjecania viastith dicwica niti ih

Druétvo iina otprije. Drzttvo u 2020, godini nije izdavalo
financijske  instumente,  Clanovi  wprave §  Elanovi
nadzomog cdbora nisu imatelii bilo kakvih financijskah

instrumenata koje je {zdalo dmivo. |

|
Vissrika strukturs kapitala Holela Jadran d.4 iskazana je |
nide (za 10 najvedih dionifara}, na dan 31.12.2020.godine-

Share capital of the Company a5 at 31122020, is HRK
74,980,500.00 and is divided into 107,115 ordinary sharcs
with & hominal value of 700,00 sach share. All shares bear
the designation HIDR-R-A and are lisied on the Regular
Market of the Zagreb Stock Exchange d.d.

In 2000, there were 00 acquisitions of treasury shanes nor
did the Company have them before. In 2020, the Company
did not wsoe Anancial nstroments. Members of the
Management Board end members of the Supervisory
Board arc not holders of any financial instruments issued

by the Compsny.
The ownership strocwre of the capital of Floteli Jadmn dd.

it ig stated bebow (for the 10 largest shareholders), as 2t 31
December 2020,

Tablica 2 Pregled viasnitke strukture na dar kraja razdoblja f Qwnership structure at the end of the period

[ 3 ime i prezime / tvrtka Broj diomica | Postotnk
L Name and gurnamefoompeny | No.shares | Peroetage |
N TOPAZD.O.O. ‘ 92717 86,56
T T 2, | IVANOVICIVANBOZIDAR | 1.539 144
3. RAIFFEISEIN BANK 924 0,86
AUSTRIA DD =
4, RAIFFEISEINBANK 850 0,79
— 1 AUSTRIA DD | == o
5. CERP/REPUBLIKA 841 0,19
HRVATSKA
6. VUKADIN ZVONIMIR 54 D51
7. DUIIC BRANKO 175 0.16
8. 'HORVAT HRVOIE 132 0,12
_ 9, ODZAK JURE 131 0,12
10. Ciupa rafuna _| 109 0,10
UKUPNQ/ TOTAL 57.961 9145 g

Levor :SKDD ¢ Source: SKDD

HOTELE JABRAN DI, JARANTKA 3 GRADAL: 2000, 7B 1RGN ME
s TAGEWACKE SUD U SPLITU, MG
KIMAPREDSEDARI

'mmm

mAN
W13 DIONICA SYARA

QEETRA: DANSEY. JELLIMNEK:
UVRETERA XA REDOVEIO TRESTE ZAGREBACKE BIHZK

k15 IR0 AR KT AMSHA.11IN19647 ¥ DEYELIA KOD P REDNE RANKE ZAGRLE 1.5
PAALSHM N TP UELOSTLPODIEL

13 TIMVEIINS KATTTAL AR U C JEN %h

Qe 5 .
MOMIXALSE EPRAVT; {TFILIA NIKEKETYA PATA, CLAN UPRAVI: ROPAA DALA; PRADGAINH
113 ERENAIGA] TEMDSRKIKETRIT ALY AATIONA DREAVA CLANECA: RAFTILIKA HICVATEXA I, HRERDRRAGIN; (XNAKA ISCAOCE: SWDR-Red,
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| 3. TURISTICKI REZULTAT
Tablica 3.0stvareai raristidid rezultali 2 2020 godinu

2019, | 21.846 46843 l
[ SOBE NOCENJA |

Sirerye holesti COVID-19 izagvalo jo peniku i brojne
potrese na turistikom @i ¥o se posljedilio odrazilo i
na poskwvanje Crupe. Naime, prvi pokazatelji i rezervacije
zapredsczmuimnulmo.gcdimsuhﬂiimadminc
prodlogodifnjih fe smo odekivali uspjelan predsezonu i vilo '
visoku i u sezoni, slijedom Sega i dolwe
poslovne reziliaie 260, podini, Qbeirom na zvanredne
okolnosti te fzetanak uvobifsjenc turisicke sezone, u
2020.g. Grupa nijc poslovala w svim objektima. Hotel
Faraon' i Hotel Laguna® nisy bili otvoreni o su gosti
alocirari u Hote] Labinoe! , jedini objekt unutar Grupe koji
j& poslovac.

Hotzl ' Lshincca' je podela s operativoun radom 27.lipnja
2020, Uslijed porasta broja zarsdenih COVID-om diljem
Europe koncem kolovoza su polele najave o zatvamnju
gramica 5o je dovele do stomirumja nezervacija 7a
razdobije rujna i listopada 1 zatvaranja objekta Srujna
2020

A FINANCLISKI REZULTAT
4.1 Prihodi {

Ulkarpe poslova pribodi iskewzand 9 ratumu dobiti 1 gubitka
1 2020.gedizd izowse 11.750.465 kn, od dega je 274.965 kn
pihods ostvareo & poduzetricima  umutar grupe te
11.475.509 kn cstvareno s pochuzetnicima izvan grope.
Ukupm poslovai pribodi Grupe su 75% nifi v odnosu na
isto razdoblje prethodne godine zhoy opdepomate situacije
pasmale globalnom pandemijoin bolesti COVID-19, koju je¢
najvise wjecala upravo na huristitki sekior,

4.2 Rashodi |

|
Ukupoi  poslovni rashodi w 2020.godini iznosili su
50757129 kn dok sz prethodne godine isd iznosili |
45343545 lou Radop povefanje operativnih trodkova
odnosi s¢ na skazivenie rezervacija u ukuphom iznosa od
INI90582 kn  za ovrfiv w odnosu na postupak OVE-

3.TOURIST RESULT

Table 3. Touristic results of the Group for 2020

2020,

(2020, 10504 | 26722
2019.

21.83 46849
ROOMNIGHTS | BEDNIGHTS |

Sourcecinformation systétn

The spread of COVID-19 caused panic and numerous |
shocks in the tourism market, which I tum affected the |
Group's operations. Namely, the first indicators emd |
puﬁsbnmﬁurﬂupmeasonmﬁzozﬂsemnmabum
hst}mrslevelandwmpcdedasmsﬁﬂpmm
and very high oocupancy in the season, resulling in good
business  gesulis in 2020, Due to  exiraordinary
circumstances and the absenes of the usual tourist season, in
2000 the provp did not oporate in all facilitics. Hatel
“Farson’ and Hotel "Laguna’ were nos opened and the guests
ware allocated to Hotel Tabincce’, the only faciity within |
the Group that operated

Hotel ‘Labincea' started operating on June 27, 2020, Due to
the increase in the number of OOVIDs across Europe, |
announcements of border closures began in late August,
teading to the cancellation of rescrvations o September |
and October and the closure of the ficility on September 5,
20:20.

4, FINANCIAL RESULT
4.1 Reveroe

Totaiupuaﬁugmmuas]nwnindmincmncsmnmm
2020 amount o HRK 11,750,465, of which HRK 274,965
of revenuces were with enireprensurs within the
goup and HRK 11473509 were geneyatod with
mwmmﬁ:ﬂxm%&m’shnlmﬁng
rovones are 75% lower compared to the same period last
ywdmtothcwcll-hmwnsiﬂmﬁonmmdhydwglohl
pmdﬂnicofﬂ)edismscd)vm-lﬁ!.whidlhudﬂ\cgrmlmt
impact on the tourism sector.

4,2 Expenses

Total operating
50,757,129 while in

expenses in 2020 amounted to HEK
the previous year they amounted to
HRK 45348545, The reeson for the increme in
upmﬁngcoslslelatesmﬂmposﬁngofpmvisionshlhc
mtxlammntof[{RKBO,BDO,SBZFnrmfmmmin
relation to the procedure OVRAR2019 which is being

‘43)’391_9.kdi5cwdipmd%ﬁnskknsuduh[akmdwi-

RSTURG MR 3tk T AU KLNEK Kot | 00195 § CEVEEN
E

APKE SUD U SPLITU, MIFS. &insan sy ¥
DENBNTK [FRLATT COOMM MKULETTA RATA, CLAX UPRAVL: XOVIA DALAC

KOO PRIFREDINE DANKE ZAGIIN 00,
TEMKLING KAMTAL: KIrA, EPLACEN 1t CUBLOSTLPODUELITS pA
i

1LI18 MIORGOA SVARA NOMINALNK VRLIEDACET] St KUNKAFRE
9 TEPNIEAITROTALSY; MATICNA DIREAVA CTANICA: morist IKA HRYATIKA; 1504 EUMERASK); DZRAKA OKICE: EID-R-A,

417

ALY A 5-HG T L ADRAN D MANAGEMENT BOAR T RER SRT.D-521%



Stalna shifba u [imotskom.

Trokkovi zaposlenil u ovom razdoblju iznose 8.550.933 kn
, &o precstavlja smanjenje od 32% 1 oduosu isto razdoblju
profle godine kada je isti izosio 12012321 kn Do
smunjenja  ovih tofkova dodlo jo ushijed izostanka
poslovnih aktiviiesti | reguliranja  materijalna peava za
vrijeme  irajanja  Ezvanrednih i waokovanih
COVID-I9 pa nadin da je bovan snage stwvijen dio
Kolektivnog wgavora kojim se regulima obraifun | isplata
placa i naknada placa.

Materjalsi trofkowi { ostali trotkovi s takoder smanjeni
uslijed izostanka poslovne akiivnosti

Financijadd rashodi imose 5.968.152 kn dok su prodle
podine tmosili 546317 kn. Ovi rashodi se najvecim
dijclom odncse na  vijednosna uskiadenja financijske
imovine 1 ukupnom izmosn od 5865383 kna keji se
odnose na ispravak vijednosti ulaganja © povezana
druftava u ukupaom iznosu od 5.554.300,00 kn, a na sadin
kako lijediudjeli u druftvu Hoted Labineca do.o. v Emoesu
od 1.705200.00 knudjeli v dreftva Hotel Laguna d.o.0. 0
iznosu od 345,000,00 kn i udjeli u druftvu Faraon do.o. v
jmosn od 3.500.10000 kn i otpis potrafivanja uslipd
ockondanja sicBamog postupka duimiks v iznogy od 311.083
k.,

4,3.Dobit

Rezultat poslovanjs je gubdink u imosu od 43.966.984 kn
dok jo prothodne godine iskazan dobitak w izmosu od
267220 kn. Razog gubitka j& prvenstveno bmetanak
podlownih  pribods  ushijed  izvanrednih  okelnosti
uzrokovanih COVID-19 te iskarivanje rezervaciia.

ERITDA je iznosila  -34.090.300 kn dok je prethodne
godine ostvareni EBITD-a osila 4,729,025 kn.

5. LIUDSKE RESURSL

Stptegiiz upravianja Gudskim regursima temelji s¢ na
Svratoj sinergiji odredifia, lokalnog stanovaittva i Grupe |
nastofi postiéi odr¥ivost osignravajudl da omjer slalto
zaposlenih i sczonskib radmka zdovoljave industrijsios 1
standarde i pruZa konkurepisku prodnost.

Ulaganje u razvoj osoblis s puoim radnim vremenotn i
sewomskog oeoblia znatsjmn jo pokretad mesta za Grupu i
planiraro anstavit viagati u to podmgie
HOTRELIADRAM DB TADBAPGRA 2, GRADM. 2150, OIB: |
ma DHIPY 7 T e
IET119 DNOHIA SYAXA NOWINALNT

AHIRCINA: BANEL L
AUVEATENA XA BEDOVITO TRAETE ZAGREBACHE MIMLK

couducted before the Municipal Court in Makarska -
Petwanent Serviee in Imocski.

Employee costs in this period amount 1o HRK 8,550,933
which is a decrense of 32% compared to the same period
lisl year when it amounted HRK 12012348 . The
reduction of thess costs was due 0 the absence of business
activilies and the regulation of material rights during the
cxraordinary cirammsiances caused by COVID-19 by
repealing part of the Collective Agreement goveming the
calculation and peyment of salaries and wages.

Material costs and other costs were also reduced due to the
shsence of business activity

Financial expenses amount bo TIRK 5,968,152 while last
year they smounted to HRK 546,317 These expenses
mostly relase to the value sdfustment of financisl assels in
total ameunt of HRK 5,365,383 refating to investments in
affiliasted compenies in the iotal amount of HRE
5,554,300.00, and I the following manner: shares in the
company Hotel Labineca daowo. in the amount of HRK
1,709,200.00, shares in the company Hotel Laguna d.o.0. in
the amount of HRE 345,000.00 and sharez in the company
Faraon doo in the wmount of HRK 3,500,100.00 &nd
write-off of receivables due to the lermination of e
debtor's bankruptey proceedings in the amount of HRK
311,083

4.3, Profit

The result of operations is # loss in the amount of HRK
43,966,984 while m the previous year a profit i the amount
of IIRK. 267.220 was rcpuﬂnd,'lhcmsmﬁ)tﬂnlouis
pﬁmanlyﬂ:clncknfopmﬁngh:mmeducmcxmdimry
circumstmess caused by COVID-19 and posting of

EBITDA amounted to FRK 34,080,300 while in the
previous year the cealized EBITDA amounted to HRK

4,729,025.
5. HUMAN RESOURCES

The human resources managsthent segy is based on 2
solid synergy of (he destingtion, the local population and the
Group is looking to achieve sustainability by making sure
the rativ of full tinse and seasonsl workers meet indusiry

! grandsrds and provides a competitive adventage.

Investment in the dewlopment of both full-time and
scasonal ¢aff is & significant enabler of growth for the
Group and we plan 1o coatinue investment in the area.
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“Na dan 31.12.2020.godine prosick broja zaposlenih tijckom
medoblja w Cirupi iznosio je 83, a godiny dana remije 85
radniks.

ulupmog trodka rada i postavnih prihoda u 2020.
podacima. iz poslovnih izvjelmje  iznosio

Omjer
padini prema
72% diok je u 2019, godini omyjer iznosio 2695,

Oxdnosi &2 zaposlenicima se razvijaju ZEhveliguél vodstvs '
Simdikalne onrnizeciie 5 kojim Uprava svakodnevno |
sursduje. Grupa u cijelosi primjenjuje  skdoplient
Kolektivai ugovor .

|
Gmpa}cumndnjisasociphunmimzregulhalo
materijalng prava za wiijeme trajanja izvanrednih okolnosti
nzrokovanih COVID-[9 tia nadin da je izvan snage stavijen |
dio Kolektivnog ugovara kojim se regulira obratun i isplata |
plaéainakxwdaplnéa.Zavrijmlrajmjainmredﬂl'
akolnosti, poslodaved nisu duzni radnicima isplaéivati placu
sulladno odrodbame  Kolektivog ugovora koji je u
primjend kod poslodavea.
U okviru programa za otuvanje rednih mjesta Grupa se
peijavilo na mjere Zaltite zeposienja te dobilo potporu za
otuvanje mdoih mjesta  do 3112.2020. w imosu od

2.143.635 kn.
|

&NACIN UPRAVIJANJA RIZICIMA

Uprarvljanje rizsicima sastavni j¢ dio planiranja i upravijanja
poslovnim  procesima 12 jo bazirano ma i
operativnih  procedura, misii i vizji e  zakonskim |
okvirima. Aktiviiosti kaje Gripa cbavija i sezonski karakier
posdovanja idlaZu ga mRomim Tizkima i to operativoom, |
valytnom, kreditnom, kamatrom i rizios likvidnost,

6.1 .Operativid rizik

Operutivii tizik pesiaje kso posfjedica peadekvatnih
procedura | neuspickih mtermdh procesa, fudskog Gikdora,
intermih il eksternih dogadaje. U Grupi su o iz
prepeenati kao rizik plasmena usiuga mdi zastanelih
objekats, rizik nedoveljnog broja sczonskih radnika na
trfity, rizik od nsmjemih grefaka | prijcvara radnika,
ckololki rizik, ridk od mogude zaraze u botelu i rizk od
mopusih prirodnia katastrofa, Grupe upravija ovim rizikotn
v skladu e strategijom i politilema npravljatga rizicima.

6.2.Valutmi risdk

Gmpabldﬁeknw,pumnmjmn,ve&mpihmiaomarqic
ma stranim UHiGma to je iziodeno jo vahinom sk
Cijene smjeiajnih usluga vezame 2 78 sirane valute,

As of Decomber 31, 2020,  the average number of
employoes during the period in the Group was 38, snd &
year carlier 85 cmployees

The mtio of total Jabor costs and operating revenues in
2020, according to data from busincss reports, was T2%,

| whilc in 2019 the ratio was 26%.

Relationships with employoes are developing thanks to the
leadership of the | tade Union, with which the Mansgement
<00 on 8 daily basis. The Group fully applies the
concluded Colloctive Agreemenl.

The Group, in cooperation wilh the social parmers,
repulated material rights during the  extraordinery
circumstances caused by COVID-19 by repealing part of
the Collective Agreement which regulstes the calculation
and payment of salaries and wages. During cxceptional
dmmnsmw.cm;iuymmnolob]iguimpaympb)w
asalmyhmdmuewidxﬂnp«misimuofme(:ollm&v:
Agresment spplicahle to the employer,

As part of the job preservation program, the Growp applicd
for employiment protection measures and rocctved support
for job prescrvation ungl 31,12.2020. in the amount of
HRK 2,143,635

6.RISK MANAGEMENT

RiskmanaWIMdisanintegmlpmofphmﬁngmd
managingh!sinesspmccsscsmdisbasedonmdmdsof'
operaticnal mission and vision, and legal |
framesworks. The activities performed by the Group and the
scasonal natwre of operations expose it to various risks,
namely operntional, cumency, credit, intetest e amd
Houidity risk-

6.1.Operative risk

Opmﬁomlnskmissasamunofimdnqummoedum
and failed intemal processes, human fctor, intemal or
external events, The Group recognizes these risks m the tisk
of placement of services due to obsolewe facilities, the risk
of insufficient number of scasonal wotkers on. the market,
the risk of intentional mistakes and Faud of workens.,
environmental Hak, the risk of possible contamination i the
hotel and the risk of possible natural disastérs. The Group
mnnngﬁlh'sriskinamdmoewiﬂlilsridcmamgumt
girategy and policies,

6.2.Currency risk

The Group indirecly, through boascs, generates most of its
income in foreign markets and is expescd to curency figk,
Prices of scconodation services are linked to foreign

| prétedno oo, e promiend vrijednosti valute mole
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" znataing utjecati pa rezultate poslovanja.

6.3 Kreditni rizik

Ovaj sizik w drudtu je prepozmef kan moguénost da
potmﬁvm:jamkupchmncbudumlizimmmdm
dospijeda, Pomra¥ivanje od dijela kupaca mogu sudrZavati
hedimiﬁzik.obzimmmviximpmmemspojcdixﬁm
Inupima i gtanje opde likvidnost u zemlji,

6.4 Kamami rizik

Buduﬁidn('jmpanmmmaﬁajneprmndeodkmmmknjc
| oarvane, prihodi i noviteni tok iz poslownih aktivaost nisu
‘cm'mi o pomjenama kamamih stops. U strukhm
keatkorodnih obveza za Zajmove, depozite i slitao, drultvo
imnubvaumkujusencn&n&mavakamamohzimmdaic
Ista predmet predstedajnug postupla.

Uprava kontinuirano prati # vodi projekciju tikvidoosti. |
|

[
Grrupa @ 2020.godtini ne bilicki nove investicije.
|

TINVESTICUIE

8.0PIS STANJA | POSLOVANIJA
|

U cilju uspostave likvidaost i restrukturiranja, Drudtvo je
podnijelo zahtiew = otvaranje postupka prodstedajne
nagodbe, te je 22 ofuka 2013, isti otvoren. Za
preductainog povieretika je imenavana gia, Mer Sing, U
: postupiu predstetajne nagodbe, svi vjerovnicl s prijavil
| gvoje tradbine b= jo Nagodbena vijece dana 27.06.2013.
zabamlp rodifte za ubvrdivanje tadbina Z@ dan
[ 17.07.2013.. Modutit, Republika Hrvatska - Ministarsivo
| financija nagodbenom vijecu je 16.05.2013.g. dostavilo |
| zalwjey 7a prekid postupks prodstedaine nugodbe uslijexd
prm-udmjanmbmnadm\muﬁmdnswimaﬁjcmﬂﬁnq
| dine vetimu ukupuh tadbina zbog utvrdivamja proboja
pravee osobnosti, Sto predstavlja prethodno pitenje &ije
fjefavanje modr mafajno wiccati na ishod postupka.
Povodom tog zahijeva, Nagmdbeno vijede je na rofib za
wividivanje mazhing dama 17.07.2013.g. dorijelo fedenje
Imjimsepmkidaposmpakm'edsw!ajmmgu&xdo
ckontanja postupka wivdivanje Ziouporabe peava prod
nadlefiira tijelom i utvdilo da e se postupek predstedagne

currencies, musily the eur, and changes i the value of the
currency can significantly affect business resulis

6.3 Credit rigk

This risk is recognized in the company 13 a possibility that
ade receivables are not realized on the maturity date
Receivables fiom some customers may include credit risk,
given (he amount of tumover with indivicual customers and
the state of genersl fiquidity in the comtry.

6.4, Intercat rate rish

Sinice the Group does not have significant intevest incame,
income and cush flow from opemling activities arc not
dependent on changes in interest rates. In the stowcrure of
short-term Habilities for loams, deposils, ei., the company
has ant obligation on which no interest is caloulated, given
that it is the subject of pre-benkruptcy proceedings.

6.5 Liquidity risk

The Management Board comtinuowsly monitors and
manages the biquidity projection.

7. INVESTMENTS
The Group does not recard any now investments in 2020.
8. DESCRIPTION OF SITUATION AND BUSINESS

Tny order to esteblish Hoguidity and vestruciure, the Company
submitied a request w open seitlement
proceodings, which was opencd on 22 March 2013, Mrs.
Meai Sitié was appointed as the pro-bankmmpicy
coramissioner. In the pre-bankuptcy scttlemenl procedure,
all creditors filed their claims and the Seflenyent Council o
77.06.201 3. scheduled a hearing 1o determine the claims for
17.07.2013. However, the Republic of Croatia - Ministry of
Finance to the Setlement Council on 16.05.2013. submitted
a pequest 10 tenminac the pre-banknipicy actlement
pmcedweducmlh:supewisimofaﬂiliamdcmpanies
whose claims make up the majority of lotel claims due to
the detcrmination of the breach of legal personality, which
is a prefiminary issue whose resolution may significantly
affect the ouicome of the procecdings. Regarding this
request, the Semlement Council at the hearing foe
determining the claims on July 17, 2013, issued & decision
suspending, the pre-banknpicy settlement pooedure until
the end of the procedure for establishing abuse of rights

of the executive decision isped in the procedure for

| - detenmining abuse of rights befors the competent body. {
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5 obzirom da je do dm doncdenja rodonja o prekidu
postupka peoieklo 117 dana postupka, te e preastalo same
3 dana da se pestupak pred nagodbenim vijelom doveli
naken Eto bude nastavhen, $o nedvojbeno nije dostatno 22
phjava zakljucka o sazivanju rodista za utvedivanje traghéna.
eventualne izmnjents plana predsicfajne nagudbe, ohjavi
{zmijenjenog plana, objavu zakljufka o zakazivaniu rofifa
:a glwsovanje o planu financijskog restrukiurivagia 1
predstedajne nagodbe i 22 odriavanje prodingtiog rofi§a za
lasovanje, 1o je curnik uloXio dana 01.09.014.¢. uloZio
zahtjev 7a produljenje roka trajanja postupha predstodaine
nagodbe te je Savjetodavno vijebe Mimstarstva financiia
dana 24.00.2014.¢ odobrilo peoduzenje roka za dodainih
10 dana, Rok za dodamih 30 dana podinje tedi od isteka
oka od 120 dana od daga otvaranja postupka peedstedajne
nagodbe.

Sukladno zakonu o financijskor poskovanfu i predstedajnog
magodbi, drftvo svoje tekuce obvest podminge 1
rokovinns predvidenim zakoncom, . 30 odnosno 60 dani ws
suglasnast povierenika predstetaine nagodbe. Druktvo na
temelju  predlodenog plane Gnancijskog i operativiog
restrikcturiranja nodi vjerovnicima predstedajnu nagodhu
kaja bi sc provela na slijedodi madin da se od utvedenih
wafbina ofpifu zateme kamaie, ukoliko iste postoje, to
piplatu gelokupne glavnioe uz zmjenu rokova dospijeca na
peﬁodongodhaoddaﬂmpmvmoﬁuﬁﬁlj&Senjao
sklaparju predstelajne nagodbe. Dana 8. lipnja 2017,
odrzano je rodiste za utvdenje fraZbina te je dana 14, lipnja
2017. doneseno fjedenje o unrdeniu taZbina Klasa UP-
F1100713-01/1683, urbroj 04-06-17-1683-141. Rotidie za
glasovanje o prihvadanju plana financijskog restrukturiranja
mkazans je za 26. sepja 2017, 12 kojem je predioZeni plan
fmancijskog  restrokturirarjs  privaden, Na fjedenic o
utvidtenu traZbina Zalio se vierovnik Optima Leasing d.o.0.
te jo Ministrstve financije u drugostupanjskom upravnam
postupkn donijelo rjckartie 11. ruina 2017. Klasa UP/I-423-
0171170253 urbroj 513-04/17-4 kojim se uvazava dalba te
sc poniftava pefiense Financijske sgenciie Klasa UP-
111007713-01/1683, urbroj 04-0617-1683-133 od 12,
tiprja 2017, navedeéi da vijele nijc dovelno obrusodile
razioge odbacivamja trafbine navedenog vierovnika. Na ovo
ckenje Nagodheno vijede HRO1 Financijske agencipe je
donijelo novo jesenje dana 23, listopada 2017, Klasa UP-
T1100713-01/1683 ormoj 04-06-17-1683-221 u kojem
odbacuje prijavu raZbing vjerovnika Optima Leasing d.0.0.
detalino obvazlazuéi mazloge doncdenja ovakvog Helenja.
Ricienjem od 08012018 {Klasa: UPTI-423-01/17-0272,
urbr. $13-0418-3) Ministarstva financija, Sumostainog
selrora za drugostupanjski upraval postupek, wvadena je
zatta vjarovniks Optima Leasitg 4,0.0. Zagreb na gedenje
o odhedaju prijave trabine te jo ponidleno felenje FINE,
Regionalni centar Zagreb, Nagodbeno vijece HROI, klasa
UP-111090713-01/1683, ur.(4.06-17-1683-221 od

Considering that 117 days of proceedings had elapsed hy
the duy of the decision to suspend the procecdings, and tat
there were only 3 days left to complete the procecdings
before the sefttement council after they repmed, which i
undoubtedly not enough to publish a conclusion on
convening 4 claim hearing, plan of the pre-bankruptoy
sclilement, publication of the amended plan, publication of
the conclusion on scheduling the hearing for voting on the
plan of finangial restructuring and  pre-benkruptey
setflement and for holding the hearing in question, the
debeor submitted on 01.09.2014. a request for extension of
the duration of the pre-bankruptey settlement procedure and
the Advisory Council of the Miniswy of Finance on
24.00.2014, approved an extension of the deadling for an
additional 30 days, The deadline fior an addirional 30 days
bcginstomﬁmuﬂmmpimlﬁ)nofhcdcad]ineoflm
days from the day of opening the pre-bankrnupicy settlenent

procedare,

In accordance with the Law on Finsncial Operations and
Pre-Banknupwy Scttkerent, the company settles irs current
lisbilitics within the deadlines provided by law, ie 30 or &0
days with the consent of the pre-bankrupicy setilorment
commissioner. Based on the proposed financial and
opermtional restructunng plan, the Company offers creditors
a pre-bankmuptey scttlement which would be camied our in
the following way o write off defsult interest, if any, and
repay {he entire principal with a change in matrity for 2
period of 8 years from the date the decision on concluding &
pmhaukruptcysc&t«umtbecmmﬁml.OnSJunezon.a
hearing for the detenmination of claims was beld and on 14
June 2017, a decision on the determination of claims Class
(P14 107 7 13<01 ¢ 1683, repistration number 04-06-17-
16R3-141, A hearing to vote on the adoption of the financial
vestruchuring plan 3% schedulod for 26 July 2017 st which
the proposed financial restructizing plan is adopred, The
creditor Optima Leasing do.o. sppealed against the
decision on determining the cleitns and the Ministry of
Finanoe in the second-instance administrative
insued a decision on 1] Septerber 2017 Clazs UP / 11-423-
01 ¢ 117-02/ 53 o, $13-04 / 17-4 upholding the appeal and
annulling the deciston of the Fmancial Agency Claes UP-1/
110807 ¢ 13-01 / 1683, reg. 04-0617-1683-133 of 12 fune
2017, stating that the Council did ot sufficicntly explatn
the reascns for rejecting the claim of the said creditor. On
this decision, the Settlenent Council HRO of the Financial
Agency adopted 2 néw decision on October 23, 2017, Class
UP-I 7 LI0A0T 4 1301 / 1683, number 04-06-17-1683-221,
in which it rejects the application of the creditor Optma
Leasing Lid ¢xplaining in detail the reasons for making
such n decision. By the decision of January 8, 2018 (class:
UP / 142301 / 1702 7 72, reg, no. 513-04 /7 18-3) ol the
Ministry of Finance, Independent Sector for Socond
Instace  Adminisrative Procedure, the appeal of the
croditor Optime Leasing do.o. Zagreh on the decsion
rejecting the claim was uplield and the decision of FINA,
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roidte za utvedenje tmihing te je [6,04.2018, doneseno
Rjetenje o ubmimjy trafing, Klasa UP-L11047/13-
01/1643, urbroj 07-02-18-1683-229 u kojor je uivedena §
rafbina vjerovnika Optima Lessing doo. sukladno
njibovom trakau. Drudtvo nakon toga izraduje povi plan
financijskog § operativnog restrukturiranja, kao i novi nacrt
prodsiodajne  nagodbe & ukbjuenim svin  wivdenjm
trazbinama te ga dostaviia Nagodbenom vijedu Financijske
agenciic koje zakazuje rolifte za glasovanic 2 5. Iipnja
2018, godine, Nepoeredno prije odrfavinja rofifta z8
glasovanje, Nagodbeno vijede jo od vimovnika Optima
Leming doo. Zageb i medufnog vierownika OL
Nekretnine do.n. Zageh raprimilo podneske kojima g2
obavjcitava da je izvrien ustup traZbing aovom vierovniku
Bohemian Financing Zit. Budimpe$ta. Dana 5. Iipnja 2018
adriane je rofiSie za glaspvanje o novor [anijenjenom
planu financijskog mestrukturiranja na kojem je spomenuti
| plan prihvaden, te j&¢ Nagodbeno vijete HRO Financijske
agencile dana 6. lipmja 2018, donijclo  Rjciemje o
pribvadanju Tamijenjenog ~ plana financijskog

franja ¥asa UP-I10:07/13-01/1683, urbej O7-
02-13-1683-248 koje je postale tzviino 26. Iipnja 2008,
godine, Drutvo je 28, lipnja 2018, podine predalo Prijedlog
7z sklapanje predsiedajne nagodbe Trgovalkom sudn u
Split.

| U trenuiku pisanja ovog rvichua Seka sc zakazivamje
Iroﬁ;tapdergnmﬁkhnudﬂnuSpﬁmmskhpmjc
peodstelajng nagodbe. Obzirom na nastupanje izvanrednth
| ckolosti izazvamih COVID-19, Trgovadki mud u Sphit je |
privremeno obusavio odriavamje rodista, Sukladno odluct |
od 29.trmvaja 2020, objavijenoj na intemetskim stranicams,
Sud e nastaviti s odravanjem rofifs od 11 svibwja |
2020, Predvidamo da bi predstetajna aagodha mogla bitf
potvrdena u drugom womjesedju 2021.2.

NajmeZajniji dogadaj ove godine je pojava virsa COVID-
19 fmjem velate 2020 Grupe alfivio prail sve
informacije vezane vz $renje korona vinsa, poschice na
cmitiveim  irfisima 1 poduzima sve mjere  zaftite
prepordans od strane Ministarstva Zdeavetva 1 Zavoda 2a
jame zdmvshvo. Grgew je u suradnji sa socijalnim
parmahnamguﬁralanmijabapﬁvamwﬁmdoksenc
radi a peispila jo i pregovorime ¢ ostalim partedima u
ailju revidiranja visine i naknade za period kada &
opuaﬁmakﬁvnnmimmﬁ.vladnkcpublikzﬁwmhcjcu
travnju objavila progmm driaviih potpora 7za suzbijanje
negativnih néinaka Covid-19 na gospodarstvo. U okvin
pmgmma(}mupscpn}avilnzamjemmmoempmhgiate
dobilo potpors za ofuvanje madnih mjeds. Osim gorc
navedene micre Grupi je odobrena micra odzode pladania

"23.102017, i predmes vraden prvostupanjskom tjeln na | Regional Ceater Zagreb, Setilement Council HRDI, class
ponovni postupak. Dana  12.04.2018. odddano je novo | TIP-[/ 11007/ 13-01 / 1633, reg. 04.06-17-1683-221 dated

23 Ociober 2017, was anmulled and the case returned to the
frsi-instancs body for retdal, A new hearing was held oo
April 12, 2018, to determine the claims and on Apdl 15,
2013, Decision on determination of claims, class UP-1 /
110007 7 13401 / 1683, registration number 07-02-1R-1683-
229, was made i which the claim of the cneditor Cptima
Leasing d.o.0. was determined according (o their request
TheCompanylhcnpwpwancwﬁnmcialmd
cperational restructuring plan, 25 well ss e new draft of pre-
bankmpeey sctilement incloding al identified caims and
subrmits it to the Financial Agency's Settlement Council,
which scheduks 8 hearing for June 5, 2018, Inmediately
befare the voting hearing, from the creditor Optime Leasing |
doo.o. Zagreb andd from the separate creditor OL Nekremine |
d.0.5. Zagreh, the Settlement Council revived submissians
informing that e assignment of claims to the now créditor
Bohemian Financing Zit. Budapest had been made. On §
Tune 2018, a hearing was held on the vote on the new
Amended Financial Restruchuring Plan, at which the said
plan was accepted, and on & hme 2018, the HRO1 Financial
Agency Sctilement Cowncil adoped & Decigion an
accepting the Amendod Financial Restructuring Plan of
class UP-1/ 110407 7 13-01 / 1683, registration number 07-
(12-18-1683-248, which became enforoeable on hme 26,
2018. On June 28, 2018, the Compeny sobmited a
Proposal for concluding a pro-bankrupicy setflement to the
Commercial Court in Spht.

At the time of writing this report, a bearing i pending
tefore the Commetcial Court in Split for 8 pro-tankrupicy
seflement, Due to the exiraordinary circumstances caused
by COVID-19, the Commercial Court in Split temporarily
suspended the hearing, Pursuant 4o the decision of 29 April
2020 published oa the website, the Court continued to hold
hearings fiom 11 May 2020. We anticipate thal the pre-
buﬂuuptcys:ﬂ]emmtmldbcmnﬁrmedinmcmmd
quarter of 2021

Themwsxaniﬁmntmﬂofmisywismcappearanceof
the COVID-19 virus at the end of February 2020. The
Group actively monitors all information relaied to the
spread of coromavirus, ¢specially in cmittng markets and
takes all protection measures recommended by the Minigry
of Health and [he Instinute of Public Health, The Group, in
cooperation with the social partmers, regulaied the material
nghmdm-ingﬂw&mewhmitwumtﬁmﬁng,mdit
started pegariations with other partocrs in order to revise the
amount and compensation for the periad when the
operational mctivity would be absent In April, the
Government of the Republic of Croatia announced & state
2id program to combat the negative cffocts of Covid-19 on
ﬂmmﬂy,AspanofﬂmmgtmtheGmupnp;ﬁedﬁx
employment profection measures and received support for

BHITIEL JADEAY DL JADAAMGKA 1. GRADGAL 210
s

10113 EI00GCA SVAKA KOMINALME YIEICEPAISTE o KL
TRGHOLN)

ODEORA; DANEL JKLLINIK: L1 OERAKA; &
LTVRETENA XA REDUVIIN MRISTE ZAGRIBALIK NERIK

020 1 5-HOTELL JATIRAN T3 D

Ol 1IN0 Mk 3T Fmrs RASINL: KLSSR] EB4A0%- (1001007 L Y EZNE WO FEIVIKDAE BANKE ZACKER D
TRGOVADKE SUD U SPUITIL MBS alneast TEMEI(RY KAPTAL MO0 KUTGA, TMLACER § CLAT OF TUNIILECLIEN B
A PREDSIEINIK UPRAYE: CECILIA XUOMHETTA BATA, CTAN CPRAVE: SOMS, BALA, FRITEIONIK
MOEAUSY; MATICRA DREAVA (LAMN:A: MEPCILIKA RVATSKA: REN: SARMIARAM: OTFANA BRGHICR: woEEA,
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odredenth § poreznih obvezs,

Kao reswltat konaénog i obvezujuécg zakijufla stetajnog

pesstupka nad madarskom tvrikom Dalmicia Holiday Kft.,

Bohemian Financing 7r, posteo jedini wiasnik 100%
: dionica Topaz d.o.0., vedinskog dianicara Druitva.

Na glavioj skupiini Dodtve odréanej dena 07, rujna 2020.
donescna je odhika o opozivs ¢lanova Nadzomog odbora, i
w: g, Tamas Vitezy-a, g Janos Cazeszlai-a 1 ge. Lidie
Deme Dedx, te su kao Sanovi nadzomog odbora izabrani g.
Diniel Jellinek, g Tamés Seillést i g Tamas Kuntdr na
maxlatao razdoblic od Setin godine.

Nedzorni odbor je tia sjednici odrianoj dana 18.09.2020.g.
domio odluku o opozivu g Laszla Atila Kerckesa,
Predsjednika uprave, i pde, Nives Gramov, Sl uprave, te
su kao novi Slanovi uprave Dnudtva imenovani gda. Cexilia
Nikoletta Fatn nz fimkeiju Predgjednik uprave i g. Soma
iZohénDalanaﬁmkdjudmupuvenammdatodpﬁ
| i
i

Nakon #o je Upmva sagledals dosadefnic poslovanje
pokrenut je postupak racionslizacijc puslovanja druftva,
kako bi 8¢ dnfitvo s dugom tadicijom poslovagja u
hotelijerstvu koja se¥e od 1955. moglo suoditi 5 izazovima
trenuthe  pandomije na  najuinkovitiji  madin. Uslijed
ofeZanih i mizvjesath wwjets poslovanja wrckovanih
pandemijormn COVID-19 i lodim resultatima  turisticke
sezone te masljedenim  golemim konsolidicanim dugom
koji ¢ nastao prije 2020 , Grepa je odiu@ilo upavijat
trofkovima na cetealizitani padin. Grupa obde 8 &e to
omoguditi smanjenje  trofkova, wéinkovitijy - mobiinost
agoblja koja odgovara keminoj vro nestabilnof potrainji 2
mjeblajuim  kspacitetima i povedanje kvalitcm uslupe.
Proces  macionalizacije zapolee je s  preuzimanjem
mpmlmﬂcn(ku&avakojamuahlpuho&dalaﬁnmi
Lag;mau(imdcui[-‘mmuﬁpnju,mkasrdjcmkidomn
ugovora o zakupi sa sadagnim zakupcima.

|
Snbzimmmimjmstmmokscmcijmiﬁkblﬂm
d;guéenajatiikahtéccﬁekreimminapmlumjc(}mpe
ali 32 nc oddkuje ugroza dugonodnog poshovana,

| expocted.

" job preservation. [n sddiion to the above measure, the

Growp hes appeoved a measure of deferml of payment of
certain tax liabilitics,

As a romlt of the final and binding conclusion of the
bankruptcy procesdings egainst the Hungarian company
Dalmécia Holiday KA\, Bohemian Financing Znl. became |
the sole owner of 100% of the shares of Topaz do.o, the
majority sharchodder of the Company.

At the General Assambly of the Company held on
September 7, 2020, & decision was mads to recall the |
members of the Supervisory Board, namely: Mr. Tamés |
Vitezy, Mr. Janos Cseszlal and Ms. Lidia Deme DeZe, and
Mr. Diniel Jellinck, Mr. Tamis Szilidsi and Mr. Tam4s |
Kuntar sere clected a5 members of the Supervisory Board
fur a verm of four years.

|
At the session held on September 18, 2020, the Supervisory |
Board decided to rocall Mro [dszlo Asila Kevekzs,
President of the Management Daard, and Ms. Nives
Grzunov, member of the Management Board, and a8 new
members of the Management Board of the Company were |
appointed My Cecflin Nikolena Fa to the position of
President of the Manapement Board and Mr, Soma Zoltin |
Dala to the position of Member of the Management Board
for a term of Ave years.

After the Management Board mviewed the cument
operations, the process of steamlining the Conpuny's
opaaﬁomwash:iﬁatai.soﬂmtthscm:pmywiﬂlahag
tradition of hote] business duting beck to 1955 could face
the challenges of the current pandermic I the most efficicnt
way.Duemdil’ﬁcultmimwm,ninbtlsm:ssmdiﬁnns|
wrsedbyth:COV‘lD-medanlc,lhcpourrm]uofﬂm
tourist season and the inherited vast consolidated debt from
before 2020, the Group decided to manape cosls in 4
oentralized manner, The Group expects that this will enable
oost feduction, mors efficient staff mobility that
wr:upmdstomcammtverymlamcdunmdfor
momnmdaﬁmcapaciﬁwmdaninmuscmﬂmqualhyof
service. The process of rationalization began with the
mkeowofmpluymofﬂ)ecompanimthmlmsdﬂw
hct:laLabhm&mdLagumh:GmdacandFammm
Trpanj, and later the termination of the kase agreemeont
with the cumant tenaats followed.

Given the uncertainty, it is not possitle to estimate how
Tong it will Tast and what effets it will have on the Groups
np&nﬁon&mtnoﬂmztlolong-lennumﬁmis

et ¥ TIGOYALIE UM U SPLITIT, M8
T 113 FAOACA SYASA NOMIFALNE YRUKTONST] Tonm KUK

OONOR
UVRETENA M% REDOVTID TRESHE ZACREBWOKE JUWS:

HOTIES JATRAN (D JAURANEKA 3, GRADAC 71308, £l 1NHTTIN5 NGk 3036155 o ACYNE KUVSE
TWIFT “Tesafl 1l

A PREDEAEDACTK CPRAYE: LXCTE I MIROLETTA FATA. CTAN UPRAYE: WA DALY
4: AN ITL DA LIeTK: L] DZRANKA: MIMSIOKETROTALTL MATICKA DREAVA CTANTA: IEFUBLIKA NEVATEXA M MUl

AT HNRIN4T | DAVIEN] KD FRIVAEDIE BAVMKE ZACKER BEJ
KAMIAL 9005008 Kuxa, THACER U CHELOSTIFORUTLIEN N

PREDRKRENIK
THIRADI | DEZXANA TRONICR: IO,
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" 9,0BAVHEST O ZASTITI OKOLISA

Upravljmje zeStitom  okolila  obubvada odgovomo
poglovanje u cilu ofuvanja okolida, primde te odnosa
prana druétvenoj zajednici radi postizanja dugorodnog
poslovig uspicha i zadovoljgva svih zainteresiranih
strana. Grupa priprema politiu upravijunga okelidem knjom
&e uskladiti poslovanje 3 vaZedim zskonsidm odredbama i
propisima iz podnxga zattte okolifa.

10.PRIMJENA KODEKSA KORPORATIVNOG
UPRAVLIANJA

Drultve dobrmaljno primjenjuje Kodeks korporativiog
upravljarga kojega su zajednidk izradile Hrvatska agencija
za nadzor financijskih vsluga (HANFA) i Zagrebalia turze
dd. Zapreb, a inwegralni bekst Kodeksa obyavljen je ma
internetskim smamicama Zagrebatke burze [www.sehr).
Drustvo objavljuje zjavi o primjeni kodeksa kovpocanvnog
upravljanja keo poschni odjeljak godifinjeg izvjckéa o stanju
drustva sukladno &1, 272.p Zakona v trpovadkim drStvima

11.0DNOSI 5 POYEZANIM DRUSTVIMA

Transakeije & povezanim druftvima wnatar Grupe odvijale
su s¢ w sksdn s ofiSmim principims i primjenom
komerchalnih wjels koji bi vazili da su wspostavijeni
izmedo nekontrelienih strana.

12.NAJZRACAINLIT DOGADAJL NAKON DATUMA
BILANCE

Kao tezultat preuzimanja 100% dionica Topez de.o. od
strane Boheminn Finaneing Zrt, proweden je obwezni |

ponude 7 preuzimapjeDana  1Esijcénja |
200 objavlieno je milinje uprive o ponsdi m
preuzimanje dok je Hveljade 2021 objavljeno tovjckiz o
peecuzimanju iz kojeg je mazvidoo da je jedan dionicer!
pritvatio ponudy 2 prewzimanje Giljancg druftva ke j¢
Bohemian Finuncing 7t sickao 43 dioice  koje
predsiavijaju 0,04% temelimog kapitala,

Druftvo je dans [5.0fgka 2021, radi potrebe osiguranga
likvidnosti u ckolngstima korona krize s druftvom Topaz
d.0.0., Fagreh, Ulica Fvana Lutiéa 2, MBS: 100001468,
O1B: 99489283996, kao zajmodavoen, skopile Ugover o
keeditn (Crodut Facility Agreement) na imos do
1,000.000,00 EUR., Drufivo ima pravo povialifl sredsiva u
matama, napvisc do uamnog iznese od 100000000 EUR,
do 31012022, Rok poviata svakog pojedinog zajma je

T 0. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION NOTICE

Envitonmental management inchudes responsible business
in order to preserve the enviromment, nawre and Ohe
relationship with the community in onder to achieve bng-
term business success and satisfaction of all stakeholders.
The Group is preparing an environmenisl management
policy that will harmonize operaticrs with applicable begnl
provisions and regularions in the ficld of evirotunental
progecticn.

10, APPLICATION OF THE
GOVERNANCE CODE

CORPORATE

The Compaty volwntarily applies the Corporate
Guvernance Code, wiich was jointly developed by the
Crostien Financial Services Supervisory Agency (HANFA)
andﬂteZagchmchxnhmgcddanub.andmc
integral ki of the Code was published on the website of
the Zagreb Stock Exchange (www.zschr). The Company
publishes the Statement on the Application of the Corparate
Govemance Codze as a spacial section of the annual report
on the stz of the company in accordance with Art 272.p
of the Companics Act

11. RELATIONS WITH ASSOCIATED COMUANIES

Transuclions with related companies within the Group were
conducted in accordance with market principles and the
spplication of commercial conditions that would apply if
they were established between non-controfling paries.

12. MOST SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE
BALANCE SHEET DATE

As & result of fhe takeover of the 100% of the sharcs of
Topaz d.oo, by Bohemian Financing 7, 2 mandstoey
takeover offer proccss was performed. On Janusry 11,
NZl,ﬂﬁmwgcmm:'sopﬁﬁmonmemkmnfferw
published, while on February 10, 2021, the takeover report

| was published, which shows that ong sharcholder accegted

the takeover offir of the target company and 25 & result
Bohemian Financing 7t acquired 43 addifional shares
reprmmﬁ:gﬁ,m%ofﬂmmpiml

On March 15, 2021, due to the nced #o cnsure liquidity in
the ciroumstances of the corona crisis, Topaz doo, Zagreb,
Ulica lvema Lo&Gida 2, MBS: 100001453, O18:
99489283006, as a lendex, concleded a Credit Facilicy
ot in the amount of up to EUR 1,000,000.00. The
Commpany has the right to withdraw funds m mstallments,
vpto & total amount of EUR 1,000,000.00, until January 31,
2022. The repayment period of cach individual lcan i3
Jarmary 31, 2022, with an interest rale of 3% per anoum.

31.01.2022.¢...s kamatotn od 5% zodinje.

HOLELE MDRAN ToEL, AUDRANSA 2. CRADAC TLil OB AWML, M
TRAN BINSRTIpHt| 1081047, SWIFT FEEGION: THEOYACKD S0 U SPUTY, Mk

QERORA: BANHL JELLINEK: LE QZNAKA: EwamestKETROTADIL SATHNA
VVRETENA Nt REDOVITO THEISTE TACRIRASKY B2y

eou1sd 2RO RACUNL. KUKSE I34005-139901054T T DEVIZN] KIHO FRIVRRONE BAMKI 74 ORI D
‘DaaLeS: TEME]JO KAFTAL: 74030000 KliA, KFLACEN U CUTLLS [UMRSWELIER K

7115 DRONECA SFAKA ROMTYALNE vELBNOFTL Wiy KITHAPREDATION K, LPRAYE: CLOHIL NINOLETTA PATA, CLAN CPRAYE: S0MA DALA; FREDUXDN LK P DIORNOG
E orcbava CLANICA: REFURGIKA BRYATSKA: 13 ERSLIMNIRAMDI; OXNAKA MONICE: BIDE RA,
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I5.0%yka 2021 predsjednica Trgovedhog suda u Splitn
donosi naredbu da se prodmet predstelajne nagodbe
dunika Fotela Jacdran dd. koji ze vodi pod brojem Stpn-
118 , zbog opravdanoeg izbivanja sudea u periodu duljem
od 2 miesera , dodijeljen novom suden,

Budimped, _2021p

=

Cecilia Nioletta Faia , predsjednica Upvave

_-"‘

Soma Zoftan Dala, &lan Uprave

POTELY JADEAN DR, JABEANSKA L GRADAL 21330 DR HIRMEWORS e 36154 Bumir RACIONE
PULCAET; TIGDY,

1IPAN WERECIETL IBWINES", SRIFT
SLEYS DAOMICA SYAKA BHINLYALNIE WRUSDNOSTY ‘TR K
3 TETRASATION

ODEORS! TAFNE, SLLIMK; LB
TVRATENA NA REGOVITD TIHECT ZACRERACKE FOREY

A PREDSICDNIE, CRRAVEE: COUILLA NILETTA FATS €LAR CTRAVE: I0MA DALAY
RTALS; MATENA DREAVA £ ARNCA: MEFUSLKA BIRYATERA, [0E EERELIDERARIN;

On Mareh 15, 2021, the President of the Commercial Court
hSin:issmdanmda'thxtthcwbjec;ﬂfﬂuprc-
baskruptey setitement of the debtor of Hotel Jadran dd
which is kept under number Stpn-1/18, due 1o the justified
shsence of the judge for a period longer than 2 months,
assigned to a new judge.

Budapest, (- O, 2021
{ Cocilia Nikoletta Fata , president of Management Board

—

Some Zoltin Dala, mmbfaof)&wm

T3amee-139a1es4) | DEVIZIG KM PRIVREDNE BANKE ZACKIR D04
BI85 KUNA, LPLACEN U CURLOXTLADUILITY Ny
PATRZOWNGG

1217
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2 JZJIAV A ODCOVORNE OSOBE

Financijski izvicttaji HOTEL} JADRAN d.d. sastavijeni
za period 01.01,-31,12.2020. prikazani su fer i istinito u
sklady sa Mcfunarodnim standardima financijskog
izvjeltavanja, koji su konzistenino primijenjeni u

odnogu na prethodne godine.

Sve materifatno znatajne transakeije su odgovarajuée
cvidentirane u ralunovodstvenim  evidencijama , pa
kojima se temedje financijski izvjektaji. ProZaja istinit i
potpun preghed imovine, obvezs, financijskog poloZaja i
poslovanja drufitva HOTELI JADRAN d.d.

-

[—— e
Cecilit Nikolctta Fata, predsjednica Uprave

e

| Soma Zottan Dala, dlan Uprave

TAOTELL JADIRAN DB, JADRAKSKA 1, GRABAC XT3, OUR: I NP M RISk TR

2. STATEMENT OF THE RESPONSIBLE PERSON

Financial starements HOTELI JADRAN d.d. compiled for
(he period 01.01.-31.12.2020. are prescnted faidy and oue
in accorsmce with Incmational Finangial Reporting
Sundards, which have been applicd consistently over
previous years.

All materia) wansections arc properly recorded in the
accounling records, on which the finamscial statements are |
based. ‘They provide a tue and complebe overview of the |
assets, liubilities, financial position and operations of the
company HOTELIJADRAN d.d.

f-::'_ _— = s e — —
Coeilia Nikoleta Fata , president of Manugement Board

Sams Zolian Dala, mmbu'oFMzi:;bgementhmﬂ

EACURE KUMGHT SO0 N[ VO § DEVELN 508 PRIVAEINE RANKK ZARELE
TRMMLING RAHTAL: TLMSES) KIPGA, HRLACEN U CUELOGTAPODERIL DS b

[BAN ERHIN091 100108Y, IWIFT MIZCHRIY) TRGOVALIO SUD U SPLITLL MR S5
17 (L5 BEOMICA $YAKA. MIMIFALNE VRIEDNCET] TL08 KERAFUIIEIEONIK L FIAVE: CECHIA NIRELET LA YATA, CLAK UMRAVE: SMA BALA;
REATE'PLA DREAVS CLANKCA, FEPURIIG IRYA TSEA; MO HRANDRAAS, OLAKA IONICE: EUDR-BA,

COBOIRA,; BAKWNIL JTS IR LI CENAKA: WIRNOHCHTROTAL
HYRETENA NA REDCAITD TREBTE ZACIIBATKE I WL

1317
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|
[ 3. LZJAVA 0  PRIMJENI KODEKSA |

KORPORATIVNOG UPRAVLIANIA

Temeljem Slanka 272p, u u veai s 81, 230.a Zakona o @
govadkim druglvima (Narodne novine broy 11193, 3499, |
52000, 11803, 107407, 148108, 13709, 12511, 15241 L.,
T2, 6815, TIVISE 40419, dafje o tekata. ZTD) § & |
22, Zakona 0 rafmovodstva (NN 7815, 134715, 120116, |
1164118,4220 i 4720 Uprava trgovackoga drustva Hotel: |
Jadrun d.d., Gradac/ Jadranska 2 (dalje u tekanr Unsdtvo),
dana 16. wavnjn 2021. godine, daje sliedelu

IZIAVU i
o primjeni Kodeksa korporntiviog wpravijanja

1. Temeljem ¢. 117 Pravila Burze, Drvdtvo primjenjuje
Kodcks komporativnog upravijania kojega su zajednitk t
izradile [Trvatska agencija za nadror fnancijskih ushiga
{I—l.-\NFAJiZagmba&abumdd‘Zagrcb,ainmlni tekst
Kodeksa objaviien jo na  interpetskim  stranicarma
Zagrebadke hurze {(www.zse hr).

2. U prodlyj godini Drudtvo je w bimome primjenjivalo
preponike utvrdene Kodedosom, uz oitupanje od nekih
preporuka 1 smjernica Kodeksa wvafavauéi koncentrirami
viasnidku strukium, Nadzomi odbor Drustva nije osmoveo
povjersnsivo 7a imenovanja i povjerensivo za nagradivanje,
a iz razloga &to Nadeomi adbor Drudtva zhog dovolinog
broja svojil Slanowva {tri) sam ebavlja poslave iz nadbeinosd
navedenih povienstave. Clanovi Nadzomog  odbora
nemaju status teovisnog lace. Detalina obrazoznja
vezana 2 neimjumjivanje odnosno  odstupanje od
pojedinih preporuka Kodelsa o 2020. godini Dnsbtve &
fznijeti u godiznjem upitiks koji je sastavni dio Kodeksa 1
ko1 ¢ se dostaviti Zagrebadkoj burzi d.d. radi javne objave.
Drultvo ulaze napore kiko bi u %0 vedoj mjeri stijedilo
peeporuke Kodeksa 12 objavijuje sve informacije &ja je
objava predvidena pozifivoun propisima e objava kogh
informacija je prvenstveno u inferesu dionidam Drustva.
Druitvo planim tijekom 2021, godine svoje poslovanje i
rezultate  poslovanja i dalje Ciniti transparcninima i
dostupnina javnost,

3. Nadzor nad vodenjem postova Drugtva provodi Nadzomi
odbor u sklsdu sa odredbemn Zakons o trgovadkim
drustvima. Uloga Nadzomog odbora takoder je regulirna
Samtom  Drudvs, Clanovi Nadzomog odbora redovito
dobivau detaline informasije o upravijamp i rade Droftva
kake bi mogli ulinkoviio ispunfavati swoju nadromu uloge. |

HOTIL] JADRAN 1D JERANSA B GRATHL 2100, G [SSIHM il JO10; Fams il

(BAN FRSEMANDL DS, SWIFT FRZGHRIG TRGOVALRS SUD [ SPLITIL MG
7 115 PIOIICA TYAKA SOMINALNE YRUEESOXTE 3020 KLNAPKEIGIY|

ODBORA; DANIFL JTLLISER; LIX
CYRETENA XA REDOAVITT TS 1T EAC AEBALKE BIRIE

| following

3. STATEMENT ON THE APPLICATION OF THE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

Pursusnt to Article 272.p, and in connection with Art. 250a
of the Companics Act (Official Gazette no. 111793, 1459,
52000, 11803, 10707, 14808, 13709, 12511, 13211,
110712, 6813, 110415 and 40719, hereinafter: ZTD) and
Art. 22 of the Accounting Act ((X3 T815, 134715, 120416,
116 / 11842 7 20 and 47°20) Manapement Board of the
companty Hoeweli Jadman dd. Ctedac, / Jodranska 2
{hereinafier: the Company) , on Apdl 16, 2021, gives the

STATEMENT
o0 the application of the Corporaie Governance Code

1. Pusuant to Art. 117 of she Exchanpe Rules, the
Company applies e Corponle Govemanes Code jointly
developed by the Croatian Financisl Services Supervisory
Agency (HANFA) and the Zagreb Siock Fxchange dad,
Zagreb, and the integral text of the Code was published on
the website of the Zagreb Stock Exchange {(www.zse br).

2, In the past year, the Company cssentially applicd the
recommendations set out 11 the Code, with & deviation from
some of the recommendations and guidelines of the Code,
taking into sccount the concentrated owncrship structure,
The Supervisory Buard of the Company ks not egtablished
a commitiee for appomtments and 2 cownmities for
remmuneratian, dus to the fact that the Supervisory Board of
the Company, duc 1o 2 sulficient number of its metnbers
{three), performs tasks within the competence of these
committees. Members of the Supervisory Board do not
have the status of an independent member, Detniled |
explanations related 1o the non-application or deviationt
fromy certain recommendations of the Code in 2020 will be
presented by the Company in the annual questionnaire
which is an integral part of the Code and which will be
subenitied to the Zagreb Swck Exchange dd. for public
disclosure. The Company muakes efforts o follow the
recommendations of the Code as much gs poasible and
publishes all information whose publieation is provided by
posttive regulations  and  the  publication of which
infocmatian is primarily in the interest of the Company's
sharcholders. During 2021, the Company planz to continué
10 make its opcrations and business resules transparent and
acoessible to the public,

3. Supervision over the conduct of the Company's
operations i3 carded out by the Supervisory Board
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act. The
role of the Supervisory Bosrd is also megulated by the
Company's Articles of Associnfion. Members of the!
Supervisory Board repularly reocive detailed information |

SCUMEKT JR0080-{ 1MIRSHT | K VIENT KOO PRIVIREDME HANKE ZACRED DDy
KAPITAL: 490,580 KDRA UALACIN T CUELOGTLPODURIILE o

Pt
DMK CPRAVE: COLILLA MIWDRETTA FATA, 1A% UPRAVE: 5054 B PRETEIWINKIK NADZCHCVOG
CZNAKA! TESNDIGNITTRITTAL Y MATICNA DREAYA G AN A: NEHIBRIKA HIKVATSHGS; 87 WRILENLANSL: CENARA DIEOCT: HEDA-RA.
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[ Tavjeade Nadzomog odbora o cbavijenom nadeom vodenj
poslova dio jo Godifnjeg izvjesén Drufitva koje sz padnosi |
| Glavnoj skupRtini.
Nadzomni odbor dichye i preko svojeg pod-odbora:
Revizorskog odbora. Revizorski odbor jc tijclo Nadzoraog
odboms koje pruda podriku Nadzomom odboru i Upravi
Drudrva u ubinkovitorm izviavanju obveza korporativhog
upravljanja, financijskog ivjestivanja i koatrole Dubtva.
Dyultvo peimjenjuje Pravila o primjeni rafunovodstvene
politilee,  kojim pravilima su uredena primjens postupka i
tehtika © iskagivanju fmovine, obveza, glasnice, prihoda,
rashoda i finsmcijskog rermlitua Druflva u temefjnim
financijekim izvjciajima.

|
4. Desct najvetih dionidara, sa stanjem na dan 31. proginca
20Xg. s

L

on the management and wark af the Company i order to
be wble to effectively fulfill their superviscay mle. The
report of the Supervisory Board on the pecformed
supervision of business operations is part of the Annval
Repont of the Company submitred o the General Assembly.
The Supervisory Board also acts through its sub-commitiee:
the Andit Commities, The Audit Committes is 2 body of
ﬂleSupmiscumerdLhzlpmvidessupgmmme
Supervisory Boerd and the Managoment Board in the
cffective implementation of corporale governance, financial
reporting and control of the Company.
The Company applies the Rules on the Application of
Accounting Policy, which rules regutate the application of
and techniques in the presentation of mssels,
linbilities, principal, moome, expenses and financial results
of the Company in the hasic Snancial sialements,

4, The ten largest shareholders, as of Docember 31, 2020.
ares

Tablica 2.Pregled viasnigke stukrure na dan kraja mzdoblja / Ovwnership structure al the ead of the peried

[ Ime i previme / tvrtka Broj dionica Postotak 3

. = Name and sumame/company No.shares Percentage

1. TOPAZ DO.O. - | 92.717 86,56

2. IVANOVIC IVAN BOZIDAR 1.539 1,44
L3 RATFFEISEINBANK AUSTRIA DD 924 N 086
| 4. RAIFFEISEINBANK AUSTRIADD | 850 0,79 o
[ 5. CERP/REPUBLIKA HRVATSKA 341 0.79 |
|6 VUKADIN ZVONIMIR ) 543 | oSt
| 7. DUJIC BRANKO 175 0,16

2. | HORVAT HRVOJE B 132 1012

9. ODZAK JURE 131 0,12 B
|10, _ Grupa ri¥una 109 0.10
| UKUPNO f TOTAL 97.961 9145

Levor :SKDD / Soarce: SKDD

Clanovi uprave i Sanovi nadzomog odbora nizu | Members of the Management Board and members of
immatelji bilo kakvih fnuneijskih instrumenata koje | the Supervisory Board are nut holders of any financial
Je indalo drodtvo, instrumenis issved by the Company,

Pravo plasa dionid%ara Drultva nije opranidenc na The voting right of the Company's shareholders is not
odeedent pomotak ili broj glasova mit postoje Timited to a conein peresntage or number of votes, nor
vremenska ogranidenja za ostvarivanje prava glasa. | arc there time limitz for cxercising the vorng right.
Svaka rmodovna dionica daje pravo na jedsn glas na | Fach ordinary share entitles 10 one vote at the General
Glavnoj skupitini. Drudtvo je ovialreno izdavati Assembly, The Compeny is suthorizod to issue
redovite dionice na ime kao i izdavati 1 druge viste 1 | ordinary registered shares as well as to issue other
rodove diotica v skladu sa poxitiviim propisima | types and gender of shares in accordance with the
Republike Hrvatske i Starutom Drugiva. Odlku o positive regulations of the Republic of Croatia and the
izdavanju dionica, sukladno élanky 172 ZTD-a, | Company's Articles of Associgtion. The decision to
donosi Glavna skupiting, a 1 skladu sa Stattom | fssue shares, in accordance with Asticle 172 of the

xmmmmtmtmsummu KLRGKE 20000 LGOS | SEVIZENT K FRIVEEDME BAMKE ZAGRIN DL
FRAN PN 10NILEWY. ST PIRDCHBIY) TROOVACRZ 500 If RPLITT, mmﬁwm&k&muﬂ&. CTLALTY U CUELOSTLROPUELIEN NMA
3 K IPRAVE: CECILIA NIKDEETTA FATA, CLAN UPRAVE: SOMA BALA: MIEDSIEON K FATKIDRNDG

¥ NONECE. EUDR-P-A.

d 0 TR KL
ODBORA: DANTEL JERLIMER; L1 (XAKA- WTHMGSKEH TROTAUS; MATHENA BIcEa YA (LAMICA REFURLIKA VA 1SKA: 68 TRETDRRAINL; (LAAKA
EALFRACKE BTRYE
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Drudtva,

Prava i obveze Drudtva koja proizlaze iz stjecanja
vlastitih dionica ostvaryjn se u skladu s odredbama
ZID-a te sukladno lome Druftve moZe stiecat
vlastite dionice na temelju oviasti Glavne skupsine
za njihovo stjecanje.

lzmjene i dopune Stafuta Drudtva donose se na
nadin utvrden Zakonom o trgovackim drudtvima

5. Uprava Druipa sastavljena je od dva Clana,
direktora Dyuftve, od kojih je jedan predsjednik
uprave, 8 jedan &lan uprave. Diccktori vode poslove
Druftva samostalno i na viastitn odgovomost te
pojedina¢no  zastupajn  drutvo. Prema Stautu |
Uprava odlufuje vedinom glasova svih glanova, au |
shuZaju jednake podijeljenceti glasova odlutujudi je |
glas predsjednika Uprave, Upravy imenuje i opoziva |
Nadzomi odbat, |

Funkciju dlanove Uprave do dana 18.092021g.
obavljali su:

1. Laszio Attila Kerckes kao predgjednik Uprave i
2. Nives Grzunov, kao Elan Upeave,

Od dana 18.09.202).g. pa do 31.12.202%.g (e do
dana sasiavijanja ovog izviedda) fivkelju Elanova
Uprave chavljaju:

1. Cecilia Nikoletta Fata kno predsjednica Uprave §
2. Soma Zoltén Dala kao &laa Uprave.

Glavna skuptina viii izbor i raztjelenje lanova
Nadzornog odbora koji ima tni &lana. Nadzomi
odbor djetuje kao kolegijalno tijelo na sjednicama
kaje se odrZavaju v pravilu jednom tromjesedno, a
pajmanje jednom  polugodifaie, a8 na kojima
respravija i odluéuje o svim pitanjima iz svoje nad-
lesnosti propisane ZTD-om i Statutom DemSrva,
Oxdluke Nadzornog odbors donose se vedinom danth

glasova.

| U razdoblju do 07.092021.g Nadzomi odbor
djelovao je u sastavy;
1. Tamés Vitezy, predsjednik

| 2. Janos Cseszlai, zamjenik predsjcdnika

WOTRLL JADESAN T, SATHANGKA 2, CRAB 11300, Oy INNATNIAL Ml X136 154
AN 3, FEpCHEIE; TROOVACKE S T SPLITY, Mk
1445 DIOMICA FYAKA FOMISAUNE VRUEISOSTT i

CDBOBRA:

WA KL VAFEDUKINIK
 DANIEL OLLINEK; £ T GREMAKA= MTIooe KR TROTAUS MATRMA BREAYA fLARK A BRVATSA B

L¥aETINA NA REBOATO TRESTE 2AGREBALKE BUREE

| Management Board and

Companies Act, is made by the General Assembly, in |
accordance with the Articles of Asscciation of the

Company. |
The rights and abligations of the Company arising
from the acquisitien of treasury shares are excrcised in
accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act
and, acoordingly, the Company may poquire lreasury
shures based on the authorization of the General
Assembly to acquire them.

Amendments to the Companys Articles of
Association are adopted in the manner determined by
the Companies Act.

5. The Management Board of the Company is
composed of two members, the directors of the
Company, of which one is the President of the
Management Board and one is a member of the
Management Board. The ditectors manage the affairs
of the Company independently and at their own risk
and individually represent the company. According to
the Articles of Association, the Managemeat Board
decides by a majority vote of all members, and in case
of equal division of votes, the deciding vote is the
President of the Management Beard, The Management
Board is appointed and revoked by the Supetvisory
Board.

The function of the members of the Management
Board until September 18, 2021, was performed by:
1. Laszlo Attila Kerckes as President of the

2, Nives Gezwnov, as member of the Management
Board

From 18.09.2021.g. unkil 31.12.2021.g. (and unt the
day of compiling this report} the function of members
of the Management Board iz performed by:

I. Cecilia Nikolette Fatz as President of the
Management Board and

2. Soma Zoltin Dala a3 2 member of the Management
Board.

The (encral Assembly clects and dismisses the

members of the Supervisory Board which has three |
members. The Supervisory Board acts as a collegial

body at mestings held 25 a rule once a quarter, and at

least once every six months, at which it discusses and

decides on all @sues within its competence prescribed

by the Companies' Act and the Company’s Articles of
Associalion, Decisions of the Supervisory Board arc

made by a majority of voles cast,

In the period until Scptember 7, 2021., the
Supervisory Boavd consisted of:

| 1, Tamés Vitezy, Prezident

a0 RADUNT KUNSNE M08 1180a90T £ BEYIZN KOO PRIVREDNE RANKK ZAGRLE Bl
i T DETLPORILIEY

KENA, TMLACES U CUEL

MOIENES: SEMELINT KAMTAL T30 M03
IFMAYE: CECILIA NIOLETTA FATA, L1LAN LPRAVE: S0MA DALA PRIDERIROTK NANZRROG
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3. Lidia Deme Defe, Elan. ' 7. Janos Cseszlai, Vice-President
3. Lidia Deme DeZe, member.

Glavna skupitina donijela je dama 07.09.202Lp. | The Genera] Assembly adopted on 07.09.2021.¢- |

odokn o opozivu  gotensvedenih  &lanova | decision on recall of the above-mentioned members of

Nudzomog odbora | imenovanju novih danova, koji | the Supervisory Board and appointment of new

su na siedoici 18.09.2021.g. donijeli odluku o | members, who made a decision on the appoiniment of

imenovanju predsjedaika i zamjenika predsjednika, | the President and Deputy President at the session on

tako da od 07.092021.g. odnosno od 18.09.2021 2. September 18, 2021, so that from 07.09.2021. that is,

pa do dana sastavijanja ovog izvjciéa Madzomi from 18.09.2021. until the day of compiling this

odbor dieluje u sljedetem sastavu! report, (e Supervisory Board opérates in the
following composition:

1. Diniel Jellinek, predsjednik

2. Tamés Sz5113s3, zamjenik predsjednika | 1. Déniel Jellinek, president

3. Tamés Kuntir, &lan. | 2. Tamés Szill6si, vice-president

3. Tamds Kuntir, member.

6. Sukladno odredbama &1, 250.a 51, 4,18l 272pst. | 6. In accondance with the provisions of Art, 250a
L 7TDwa te &, 22. Zakona o raéunovodstva, ova | paragraph 4 and An. 272p paragraph 1 of the
Izjava je poseban odjeljak i sastavni dio Godifajega Companies’ Act and Art. 22 of the Accounting Act,
izvichia o stanju Druftva za 2020. godinu. this Statement is a special section and an integral pert
of the Annual Report on the Company for 2020.

e e
Cocflia Nikoletta Fam,_ predsjednica Uprave Cecaﬁa Nikolefia Fata , president of Management
Bo,
Soma Zolidn Dala, Slan Uprave Soma Zoltin DalaTm&mber of Management Board

RINTXLE SABGAN DD, JABWANSIA 1 GRADWC HLIN, (KK s Mik: WL ZTRO BACTML KETSKE 130803-1IDMIres! | DEVENE KO FRIVECIPA BANKE ZAGRES DL
THAN HENIHOGHTIOMANS, SWIVE PRECEIRIE; TRGOVACK LD i Sraore, Mk GeoMOLIy TEMELINT RAPITAL: SAM0I0M0 KLYA LFLACEN © MOLIOLIZN M4
0116 DIONICA SVAKA, ROMINALNE YRATENSHYSTT 9300 KINAPRIBSIIRUN LFHAVE CECTUA NIKOLETTA FATA, CTAN CPHAVE: I0A BALA: FRERSFEDATX NADTO0

CRBORA: DANIEL JELLINER; LET (RKAKA: TETRSIGIITBOTADS MATICNA Brdava £LANNCA: REFUBLIA HRVATEHA: ISRE KIEILIDERASL DENAKA DIOKICE: RRE-H-A,

LYRETEMA HA REDOVITO
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Responsibility of the Management for the consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to the Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia (Official Gazette 78/15, 134/15, 120/16,116/18,
42/20 and 47/20), the Management Board is responsible for ensuring that consolidated financial statements
are prepared for each financial year in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRSs), as determined by the European Commission and published in the Official Journal of the European
Union, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and its business performance for

the period.

After making appropriate enquiries, the Management Board has a reasonable expectation that the Group
will have adequate resources for the foreseeable future and therefore continues to apply the going-concern

principle in preparing financial statements.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the responsibilities of the Management Board include

the following:

= selecting and then consistently applying appropriate accounting policies;
= making reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates;

« following applicable accounting standards, subject to disclosure and explanation of any material

departures in the consolidated financial statements; and

= preparing the financial statements under the going-concern assumption unless the assumption that the

Group will continue as a going concern is not appropriate.

The Management Board is responsible for keeping proper accounting records, which disclose with
reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group. The Management Board must also
ensure that the consolidated financial statements comply with the Accounting Act. In addition, the
Management Board is responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for taking reasonable steps

for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation and content of the Management Report, in
accordance with the provisions of the Accounting Act of the Republic of Croatia (Croatian Official Gazette

78/15, 134/15, 120/16, 116/18, 42/20 and 47/20).

Signed for and on behalf of the Management on 15 April 2021 by:

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

Jadranska 2

21 330 Gradac

Republic of Croatia )

— 2 /___

X

Cecilia Nikoletta Fata

President of the Management Board

Soma Zoltan Dala

Member of the Management Board
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the Shareholders of HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

Report on the Audit of the Annual Financial Statements

Unqualified Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac (“the Group”), and
its subsidiaries (together the "Group"), which comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2020, and the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of cash flows, the consolidated statement of changes in shareholders'
equity and for the year then ended, as well as consolidated notes to the financial statements, including a

summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the possible effects of the issue described in our report in the Section with a basis
for a qualified opinion the Group annual consolidated financial statements present true and fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Group at 31 December 2020, its financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards

(IFRSs) as determined by the European Commission and published in the Official Journal of the European

Union.
Basis for Qualified Opinion

The Group has receivables for loans and interest in the total amount of HRK 34,836,878 from companies
that are in bankruptcy proceedings or do not have significant business activities (Note 19). Although
receivables are older than 365 days and the Group does not have receivables collateral and no value
adjustment has been made for them at the expense of results. Given the uncertainty of the outcome of pre-
bankruptcy settlements, pre-bankruptcy settlement proceedings are suspended, we were not able to
ascertain whether the stated receivables on loans and interest were presented fairly, nor to determine the

amount of adjustments if necessary.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Accounting Act, the Act on Auditing and International
Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under those standards are described further in the
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Annual Financial Statements section of our
Independent Auditor's Report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We believe that the audit

evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our qualified opinion.
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Important issue

We draw attention to Note 32 to the consolidated financial statements, stating that in March 2020, due to
the declared Covid-19 pandemic, many measures were introduced in Croatia and the world to restrict the
movement of people and goods in order to combat the pandemic, which significantly affect the Croatian and
world economy, ie cause significant decline in economic activity. This decline in economic activities also has
an impact on the Group's operations. At present, it is not possible to reliably determine the duration and
effect of these measures and the decline in economic activities, nor the impact they will have on the Group's
operations. The Management Board of the Group believes that the above will not jeopardize the principle of

unlimited business of the Group. Our opinion is not madified in relation to that issue.

Material going-concern uncertainty

We draw attention to Note 1 to the consolidated annual financial statements, which describes the pre-
bankruptey settlement procedure. In accordance with the Act on Financial Operations and Pre-bankruptcy
Settlement (Croatian official gazette “Narodne novine” nos 108/12,144/12, 81/13, 112/13, 71/15, and
78/15), the Group has initiated pre-bankruptcy settlement because of its poor financial situation and the
blocked current account. A voting hearing regarding the Financial Restructuring Plan for the Group was
held on 06 June 2018, at which the required majority was reached to adopt the Plan, and the Ruling
approving the Financial Restructuring Plan was adopted. Pre-bankruptcy settlement, which is based on
financial and operational restructuring plan, is excpected to be confirmed. That would be create
preprequisites to eliminate the uncertainty regarding the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our

opinion is not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance for our
audit of the consolidated annual financial statements for the current period and include the most significant
risks of material misstatement identified as a result of error or fraud that have the highest impact on our
audit strategy, allocation of our resources and the time spent by the engaged audit team. We addressed
these matters in the context of our audit of the annual financial statements taken as a whole, and in forming

our opinion thereon, but we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Our audit approach

In determining our audit approach, we have considered the materiality of the items in the financial
statements, our risk assessment within the components of each item. In determining the approach to the
audit, we determined the type of work that needed to be done in order to gather sufficient valid evidence as

a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters | Our audit approach
Valuation of buildings
The Group subsequently  measures The Auditor's attention was focused on:
construction facilities using the cost method,
and on 31.12.2020. the net book value of » Checking whether the net book value is equal
buildings amounts to HRK 59,601,827. Given to or lower than the recoverable amount of
the significant impact of the COVID-19 buildings
pandemic on the Group’s revenue, the « Based on the collected estimates of buildings,
impairment of buildings was identified as one we are satisfied that the net book value of
of the key issues. buildings is lower than the recoverable

amount on the market (Note 14).

Provisions for litigation
in the consolidated Statement of financial position | The Auditor's attention was focused on:
as at 31 December 2020, the Group discloses | e Verification of initiated litigation against the

provisions for initiated litigation in the amount of Group according to the received attorney's
HRK 30,390,582. reports on litigation in which they represent
the Group

e In conversation with the Management Board
and review of law received reports on the
state of legal proceedings, the Group is
properly recorded expenses on behalf of
provision (Note 10 and 23)

Other informations in consolidated Annual Managemet Report

Management is responsible for other information. Other information includes information included in the
consolidated annual report, but does not include the consolidated annual financial statements and our

independent auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated annual financial statements does not include other information, except o
the extent explicitly stated in the part of our independent auditor's report entitied Report on Other Legal

Requirements, and we do not express any form of conclusion expressing assurance about them.

With respect to our audit of the consolidated annual financial statements, it is our responsibility to read other
information and, in doing so, consider whether other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated annual financial statements or our audit findings or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have done, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this

other information, we are required to report that fact. In that sense, we have nothing to report.

22



/ Russell Bedford Croatia
Russell Bedford it
/4 Selska cesta 90b/2 kat
taking you further 10000 Zagreb - Hrvatska / Croatia

O1B: 64094041583

IBAN: HR2823600001102416797

T: +38514107 118

F: +38513758 211

E: info@russellbedford.hr

Member of Russell Bedford International www.russellbedford.hr

Responsibilities of the Management and Those Charged with Governance for the consolidated
Annual Financial Statements

The Management Board is responsible for the preparation of consolidated annual finnancial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs), as
determined by the European Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated annual financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing consolidated annual financial statements, the Management Board is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, including, where appropriate, the disclosure of matters
related to the going-concern assumption and the use of the going-concern basis of accounting unless the
Management Board either intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic

alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process established

by the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the consolidated Annual Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated annual financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of the consolidated annual financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional

skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated annual financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting
a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve

collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness

of the Group’s internal control.

« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting

estimates and related disclosures made by the Management Board.
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« Conclude on the appropriateness of the use by the Management Board of the going concern basis of
accounting. We also conclude, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in the auditor's
report to the disclosures in the consolidated annual financial statements about the material uncertainty or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion on the consolidated financial statements. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained until the date of the auditor's report. However, future

events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the annual financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated annual financial statements represent the underlying

transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control

that we identify during our audit.

We are also required to provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we are required to determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated annual financial statements for the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor's report
unless a law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such

communication.

Report on Other Legal Requirements
Report under requirements of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014

1. We were appointed auditors of the consolidated annual financial statements for the year 2020 on the

proposal of the Supervisory Board on 15 February 2021.

2. As of the date of this report, we have been continuously engaged to perform statutory audits of the Group
for 2019, from the audit of the consolidated annual financial statements for the year 2020, for a total of 2

years.
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3. Except for the matters identified in the relevant section of our Report on the consolidated Financial
Statements as key audit matters, we have nothing further to report regarding point (c) of Article 10 of the

Regulation (EU) No 537/2014.

4. Our statutory audit of the consolidated annual financial statements of the Group for the year 2020
enables us to identify irregularities, including fraud, in accordance with Section 225 of the IESBA Code
Responding to Non-compliance with Laws and Regulations, which requires from us to consider, as part of
our audit engagement, whether the Group has complied with laws and regulations generally recognised to
have a direct effect on the determination of material amounts and disclosures in consolidated annual
financial statements, as well as other laws and regulations that do not have a direct effect on the
determination of material amounts and disclosures in annual financial statements of the Group, but
compliance with which may be fundamental to the operating aspects of the Group, to its ability to continue

as a going concern, or to avoid material penalties.

Where we encounter, or become aware of, non-compliance of any of the laws or regulations regarding
matters that are clearly inconsequential, based on our judgement of their nature and their impact, financial
or otherwise, on the Group, its stakeholders or the wider public, we have to communicate such non-
compliance to the Group and request from it to investigate it and take appropriate measures to resolve the
non-compliance and prevent its future occurrence. If the Group does not correct the instances of non-
compliance resulting in misstatements of the audited consolidated annual financial statements that are
cumulatively equal to, or higher than, the materiality threshold for the financial statements taken as a whole,
we are required to modify our opinion in the independent auditor’s report. In the audit of the Group's annual
consolidated financial statements for 2020, we determined the significance for the financial statements as a
whole in the amount of HRK 493,852, which represents the arithmetic mean of the values obtained on the

basis of assets and income given the large disparity between the two.

5. Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the Group’s Audit Committee, prepared in
accordance with the provisions from Article 11 of Regulation (EU) No 537/2014.

6. From the opening date of the audited annual financial statements of the Group for the year 2020 to the
date of this report, we did not provide any prohibited non-audit services and in the preceding business year
we did not provide any services of design and implementation of internal control or risk management
procedures over the financial information preparation and/or control, or financial application systems, and,

in performing our audit, we have maintained our independence from the Group.

Report on Other Legal Requirements

1. In our opinion, based on the work performed during the audit, the information in the attached report of the

Group's management for 2020 is harmonized with the attached annual financial statements of the Group for

2020.
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2. In our opinion, based on the work performed during the audit, the attached report of the Group's

management for 2020 has been prepared in accordance with the Accounting Act.

3. Based on the knowledge and understanding of the Group's operations and its environment acquired
during the audit, we have not established that there are significant misstatements in the attached report of

the Group's management.

4. In our opinion, based on the work performed during the audit, the statement on the application of the
corporate governance code, included in the Group's annual report for 2020, is in accordance with the

requirements set out in Article 22, items 3 and 4 of the Law on accounting.

5. The statement on the application of the corporate governance code, included in the annual report of the
Group for 2020, includes the information referred to in Article 22, items 1, 2, 5 and 6 of the Accounting Act.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Pasko Anic-Antic.

Russell Bedford Croatia — Revizija d.o.o.
Selska cesta 90/B

10000 Zagreb

Republic of Croatia

Dr.sc. Pasko Ani¢-Antic Pasko Ani¢-Anti¢, PhD
Director Certified Auditor

% Russell Bedford

Croatia-revizijo d.o.o. / =
A 4/ j Selska cesta 90b/2.kat o Y Iy 4
! -7 e 10000 Zagreb - Hrvatska / Croatia A o) Pl o

Zagreb, 23 April 2021
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Consolidated Statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

Notes 2020 2019
Operating income
Goods and service sales 4 7,856,642 41,717,396
Other operating income 5 3,893,823 3,344,932
Total operating income 11,750,465 45,062,328
Poslovni rashodi
Cost of material 6 (5,585,481) (25,196,845)
Staff costs 7 (8,550,933) (12,012,321)
Depreciation and amortisation 8 (4,916,364) (5,015,242)
Other expenses 9 (1,269,951) (2,837,214
Value adjustment (5,209) (26,137)
Provisions 10 (30,390,582) -
Other operating expenses (38,609) (260,786)
Total operating expenses (50,757,129) (45,348,545)
Profit/(Loss) from operations (39,006,664) (286,217)
Net financial income/(expense) 11 686,465 755,184
Profit/(Loss) before tax (38,320,199) 468,967
Income tax expense 12 92,485 201,747
Profit/(Loss) for the period (38,412,684) 267,220
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of ) i}
taxes
Comprehensive income for the year (38,412,684) 267,220

. (358,61)
Profit/(Loss) per share 13 Kuna 2,49 kuna
27

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



Consolidated Statement of financial position
At 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

Notes 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible assets 160,967 266,668
Property, plant and equipment 14 67,397,181 73,076,415
Long-term financial assets 15 1,231,699 1,322,556
Receivables - 18,750
68,789,847 74,684,389
Current assets
Inventories 16 426,261 674,953
Trade receivables 17 1,382,906 1,009,295
Other current receivables 18 3,384,831 6,351,292
Current financial assets 19 34,836,878 32,268,248
Cash 20 194,010 2,029,625
40,224,886 42,333,413
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 16,104 32,131
Total assets 109,030,837 117,049,933
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Capital and reserves
Share capital 21 74,980,500 74,980,500
Capital gains 21 173,442 173,442
Legal (statutory) reserves 22 800,000 3,770,050
Other reserves 22 - 12,064,778
Retained earnings 22 17,491,366 2,189,318
(Loss)/Profit for the year 22 (38,412,684) 267,220
55,032,624 93,445,308
Provisions 23 30,390,582 -
Long term liabilities 22,413 -
Current liabilities
Liabilities for received loans 24 2,959,070 1,959,563
Trade payables 25 11,737,403 13,573,286
Liabilities for advances 26 6,222,878 5,125,009
Liabilities to employees 337,848 605,333
Other liabilities 27 2,316,010 2,321,480
23,573,209 23,584,671
Accrued expenses and deferred income 12,009 19,954
Total equity and liabilities 109,030,837 117,049,933
28

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



pajenuinsoy)

62 ‘sjualale]s |eloueuly asay) Jo Hed |eibajul ue wio) sejou BulAuedwoooe sy
¥29'2€0'SS (¥89°Z11'8E) 99¢' L6V L1 - 000008 'eLl 005°086'VL gt
Jaqwaosa( £ 1e asuejeg
(8921 ¥'8¢) (y89'Z1¥'8¢) . E - - 020z Jeek ayj Joj (ss07)
- - 828°VE0'GL (822'v90°2L) (050'026'2) . - sabueyo Aunbe Jeyo
. ‘ . } _ } ) sbuiules paulejel
(0zz'L92) 0zz'L9¢2 o} oud 40 Jeysuei)
'] ' ] & i 5, i ] 1 (] s é mroN
80€'SYY'e6 022'192 8LE'681°2 8LL'790'CL 050'0LL'E rv'ell 005°086'vL Joquisoag 1§ Je souejeg
02Z'.L92 022,92 - - - - B 610 JesA sy 4o} s507
- tap ot . . . . _ } sbujuies pauiejal
(095'8¥6'2) 095'8¥6'C LM $50] J0 9B6LIBA0D
880'8/1°€6 096'8¥6'c (evz'6sL) 81.'%90°C1 0s0'0LL'e cri'ell 005°086'vL 610Z Aenuer | je souejeg
ejo ”__Moﬁww_.% ) MMHMM_MM seAlosed SEAIISS. suieb |epde ejndes aJe
iejo) E_e_n_ L [(sess0] P00 [eBo 1eb jeyded ey us

Jepelo “p'p NVHAVF N3LOH

0Z0Z 19qwaoaq L¢ papua Jeak ayy 1o
Aynba ,siapjoyaieys uj sabueys Jo JUSWIE}S PIJRPIIOSLOD



Consolidated Statement of cash flows
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

2020 2019
Poslovne aktivnosti
(Loss) for the year before tax (38,320,199) 468,967
Depreciation and amortisation 4,916,364 5,015,242
Interest and dividend income (1,079,590) (1,201,789)
Interest expenses 27,746 29,018
Provisions 30,390,582 -
Other adjustments for non-monetary transactions 5,209 164,681
(4,059,888) 4,476,119
Working capital changes (without effects, acquisitions and disposals):
Increase/(decrease) in short-term liabilities (11,462) 4,421,835
(Increase)/decrease in short-term receivables 2,399,439 (2,421,896)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 248,692 (86,583)
Other increases/decreases in working capital (933,933) 1,973,475
Cash interest expenses - (20,824)
Paid income taxes 188,202 (968,664)
1,890,938 2,897,343
Cash inflow from operations (2,168,950) 7,373,462
Investing activities
Cash receipts from interest and repayment of loans 1,402 3,275
Cash outlays for the purchase of fixed assets (47,000) (907,409)
Cash outflows from loans granted (17,088) (6,395,085)
Net cash (outflow) from investing activities (62,686) (7,299,219)
Financing activities
Increase in short-term borrowings repayment 905,817 -
Decrease in short-term borrowings (509,856) —
Net cash inflow from financing activities 395,961 -
Cash and cash equivalents
At beginning of year 2,029,685 1,955,442
At end of year 194,010 2,029,685
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (1,835,675) 74,243
30

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

HOTELI JADRAN, Group based in Gradac, operates in Croatia. Its registered seat is at Jadranska 2,
Gradac. The Group provides restaurant, accommodation and food services, and is also engaged in nautical
tourism and retail trade. The Group is registered at the Commercial Court in Split, with the registered share
capital in the amount of HRK 107,115,000.00.

In the General Shareholders’ Meeting held on 10 February 2003 a decision was made to decrease the
share capital by the amount of accumulated losses to HRK 74,980,500.00, or HRK 700.00 per share, and

the decrease was registered at the Commercial Court in Split.

HOTELI JADRAN Group consists of the following companies:

- HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac (Parent company),

- Faraon d.o.o., Trpanj, 100% owned by the parent company,

- Hotel Labineca d.0.0., Gradac, 100% owned by the parent company,

- Jadran Laguna d.o.0., Gradac, 100% owned by the parent company

The Group owns three hotels: the Hotel Labineca, with 216 rooms, the Hotel Laguna, with 268 rooms, and

the Hotel Faraon, with 115 rooms, which are leased out for a fee.

Corporate governance and management

Shareholders’ Assembly

Daniel Jellinek President of the Assembly

Supervisory Board

Daniel Jellinek Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Tamas Sz6ll6si Deputy Chairman of the Supervisory Board
Tamas Kuntar Member of the Supervisory Board

Management Board

Cecilia Nikoletta Fata President of the Management Board
Soma Zoltan Dala Member of the Management Board
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

1. GENERAL INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Going concern
In accordance with the Act on Financial Operations and Pre-bankruptcy Settlement (Croatian OG nos
108/12,144/12, 81/13, 112/13, 71/15 and 78/15), the Group has initiated pre-bankruptcy settlement

(insolvency) procedures because of its poor financial situation and the blocked gyro account.

A voting hearing regarding the Financial Restructuring Plan for the Group was held on 6 June 2018, at
which the required majority was reached to adopt the Plan, and the Ruling approving the Financial
Restructuring Plan was adopted. It is expected that the pre-bankruptcy settiement arrangement based on
the financial and operational restructuring plan would create preprequisites to eliminate the uncertainty
regarding the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion has not been modified on this
issue.

These consolidated financial statements do not include any adjustments to the recoverable amounts of

assets and liabilities, or reclassification of the assets and liabilities that would otherwise be required if the

Group were no longer able to continue as a going concern.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

2 ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs)

First-time adoption of amendments to existing standards effective for the current reporting period
The following amendments to the existing standards and new interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and adopted by the European Union are effective for the current
period:

« IFRS 16 “Leases”, adopted by the European Union on 31 October 2017 (effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019.).

o Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial instruments", adopted by the European Union on 22 November
2018 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020);

e Amendments to IAS 19 “Employee Benefits” — Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement,
adopted by the European Union on 13 March 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after
1 January 2020),

o Amendments to IAS 28 “Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures” — Long-term Interests
in Associates and Joint Ventures — adopted by the European Union on 08 February 2019 (effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

e Amendments to various Standards “Improvements to IFRS Standards 2015-2017 Cycle”,
resulting from the IFRS annual improvement project (IFRS 3, IFRS 11, IAS 12 and IAS 23), primarily
with a view to removing inconsistencies and clarifying wording — adopted by the European Union on
14 March 2019 (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

e IFRIC 23 “Uncertainty Over Income Tax Treatments” — adopted by the EU on 23 QOctober 2018

(effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019).

The adoption of the amended Standards and the Interpretation has not lead to any material changes in

the financial statements of the Group.

Amendments to the existing standards issued by IASB and adopted by the European Union, but

not yet effective
At the date of approval of these financial statements, there are no new Standards and amendments to

Standards issued by the IASB and adopted by the European Union, which are not yet in force.

New standards and amendments to the current standards issued by the IASB, but not yet adopted

by the European Union

IFRSs currently adopted by the EU do not differ significantly from the official pronouncements of the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), except for the following Standards, amendments to the
existing Standards and Interpretations, not yet endorsed by the EU (the effective dates below apply to

IFRSs as a whole):
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

2  ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(IFRSs) (CONTINUED)

New standards and amendments to the current standards issued by the IASB, but not yet adopted

by the European Union (continued)

. IFRS 14 “Regulatory Deferral Accounts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2016) — The EC has decided not to launch the endorsement process of the interim standard and

to wait for the final Standard,

° IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts” (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021),
. Amendments to IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” — Definition of a Business (effective for

business acquisitions on or after the first annual reporting period beginning on or after 1 January 2020 and

asset acquisitions effective at the beginning of that period and thereafter),

. Amendments to IFRS 9 “Financial instruments”, IAS 39 "Financial instruments™
Recognition and measurement "and IFRS 7 “Financial instruments: Disclosures” - —
Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2021),

. Amendments to IFRS 10 “Consolidated Financial Statements” and IAS 28 “Investments in

Associates and Joint Ventures” — Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Associate

or Joint Venture and further amendments (effective date has been deferred indefinitely until the research

project on the equity method has been concluded).

. Amendments to IAS 1 “Presentation of Financial Statements” and IAS 8 “Accounting

Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors” — Definition of Material (effective for annual

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020),

. Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020).

As assessed by the Group, the adoption of the new Standards and the amendments to the existing
Standards would not have a material impact on its financial statements. Applying hedge accounting to a
portfolio of financial assets and liabilities the principles of which have not been endorsed by the EU

remains unregulated.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

3.1. Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared in accordance with Accounting Act and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as determined by the European Commission and
published in the Official Journal of the European Union. The financial statements are prepared under the
historical cost. The accounting policies have been consistently applied unless stated otherwise. The

financial statements have been prepared under the going-concern assumption.

In the consolidated financial statements, subsidiaries - which represent all companies over which the Group,
directly or indirectly, has more than half of the voting rights or otherwise has control over operations - are

fully consolidated.
3.2. Consolidation

Consolidated financial statements includes financial statements of the Group and its subsidaries (together

,Group*), together with the Group's shares in subsidaries.

Business Combinations
The Group applies IFRS 3 “Business Combinations” for accounting business combinations. Accounting

policies applied in these acquisitions are described below .

Business combinations are applying with the acquisition method on acquisition date, on day when the

Group acquired control.

The Group controls another entity when it is exposed or when it is entitled to a variable return from
participation in the entity, and its power over the entity has the potential to affect the yield. The Group re-
evaluates whether it has control when one or more control elements change. This includes circumstances
in which the Group's protection rights (for example, those arising from lending activities) become

significant and lead to the Group having power over the entity.

The Group measures goodwill at the acquisition date as:

- fair value of the consideration transferred; increased by

- recognized amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity, increased by,

- if the acquisition is realized in parts, the fair value of the existing ownership share in the acquired Group;

-reduced by
- net amount recognized (generally fair value) of identifiable assets and liabilities acquired.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.2. Consolidation (continued)

If the sum represents a negative value, the gain arising from the bargain purchase is recognized

immediately in profit or loss.

Transferred fee does not include amounts relating to the settlement of previous business relationships.

Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Acquisition-related costs, other than those related to the issue of debt or equity securities, that the Group

incurs in connection with a business combination are recognized as an expense when incurred.

Any contingent consideration is recognized at fair value at the acquisition date. If a contingent
consideration is classified as equity, it is not revaluated and its settlement is recognized within equity. In

other cases, subsequent changes in the fair value of the potential charge are recognized in profit or loss.

The consolidation includes the following subsidiaries:

Ownership . Ownership = 5
share in % Contiol 5220/0" share in % Controlzlr(;1/9o
2020 B 2019
Subsidiaries
HoTEL LABINECA d.o.0., 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
éﬁ‘;‘;’:p‘ SABRAN d.0:0. 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
FARAON d.0.0., Trpanj 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00%
The amounts of assets, liabilities, income, expenses and profits of subsidiaries are shown below:
Assets Liabilities Net assets

31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2020 31122019 31422020  31.12.2019
HOTEL
LABINECA 29,621,135 27,986,826 19,534,042 19,953,914 10,087,093 8,032,912
d.o.o., Gradac
JADRAN
LAGUNA d.o.0., 12,485,042 13,608,433 15,250,880 13,953,941 (2,774,838) (345,508)
Gradac
%:_'/:)F:;ON d0o. 5685706 7,527,741 10,458,636 10,061,696  (3.772930)  (2.533,955)

Revenues Expenses Net profit / {loss)
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

HOTEL
LABINECAd.oo., 10266534 23,142,745 8,119.868 21,788,322 2,146,666 1,354,423
Gradac
JADRANLAGUNA 356413 13,959,358 5,689,443 13.456,811  (2,429,330) 502,547
d.o.0., Gradac
if‘pzﬁ‘jo"‘ 0% 1,082,070 9,389,326 2321,046 10225119  (1,238,976) (835,793)
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.3. Reporting currency
Consolidated Financial statements are presented in Croatian kunas. At 31 December 2020 the exchange
rate for EUR 1 and USD 1 was HRK 7.536898 and HRK 6.139039 respectively (at 31.12.2019: EUR 1 =

HRK 7.442580 and USD 1 = HRK 6.649911).

3.4. Foreign currencies

In these consolidated financial statements, transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated
to the Group's functional currency at the rates of exchange prevailing on the dates of the transactions.
Monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated to the functional currency at the
exchange rates prevailing on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value
was determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency

are not retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are included in profit or loss for the period. Exchange differences arising on the retranslation of non-
monetary items carried at fair value are included in profit or loss for the period as financial expenses,
except for differences arising on the retranslation of non-monetary items available for sale in respect of
which gains and losses are recognised directly in equity. For such non-monetary items, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised directly in equity.

3.5. Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are recognised initially at cost, less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the

estimated useful life of an asset at the following annual rates:

2020 2019
Buildings 2,80% 2,80%
Plant and equipment 10,00%-20,00% 10,00%-20,00%
Furniture, tools and other equipment 10,00%-20,00% 10,00%-20,00%

The initial cost of an item of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price, including import
duties and non-refundable purchase taxes and any directly attributable costs of bringing an asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after property, plant and equipment have been put into use, such as repairs and
maintenance and overhaul costs, is recognized in the statement of profit or loss as expense in the period

in which it is incurred.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.5. Property, plant and equipment (continued)

In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in an increase in
the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment beyond its originally assessed standard performance, the expenditures are capitalised as an
additional cost of property, plant and equipment. Costs eligible for capitalization include costs of periodic,
planned significant inspections and overhauls necessary for further operation.

Equipment is capitalized when its useful life is greater than one year, and its individual cost is greater than
HRK 3.5 thousand. Tools are capitalized regardless of their unit cost. Property, plant and equipment are
derecognised from the financial statements when they are disposed of or when no further benefits from

their continuing use or disposal are expected.

Gains on disposal of property, plant and equipment are credited directly to income. The net book value of

retired property, plant and equipment is included in expenses.

An increase in the carrying amount on the remeasurement of an asset is credited to the revaluation
reserve. Reversal of any previously recognized surplus on revaluation is presented as a deduction of the

revaluation reserve, whereas any other decreases are charged to profit or loss.

3.6. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are purchased separately and carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is provided using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful life of an asset. The useful life and amortisation method are reviewed at each year-end,

with any effect of changes in estimates being accounted for prospectively.

3.7. Non-current assets held for sale

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be
recovered principally through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is
regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for
immediate sale in its present condition, and the sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed
sale within one year from the date of the classification. Non-current assets (and disposal groups)
classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their previous carrying amount and fair value less

costs to sell.
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Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.8. Leases

IFRS 16 “Leases” introduces a new definition of leases and confirms current difference between two types

of leases (operating and financial) with respect to the accounting treatment to be applied by the lessor.

The accounting treatment applied by lessees implies the same treatment for all types of leases, namely
the recognition of assets, which represents the right to use which represents the right to use the assets

and in the same time liability for future payments under the lease agreement.

In initial recognition, these assets are measured based on the cash flows of the lease. Upon initial
recognition, right of use is valued in accordance with Standards under IAS 16, IAS 38 or IAS 40 and
therefore applying the cost model (decreased for accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment

losses), the revaluation model or the fair value model.

In order to calculate the lease obligation and the associated property with the right of use, discounting of
future lease payments is carried out at an appropriate discount rate. In this regard, future lease payments
that are discounted are determined on the basis of contractual provisions, excluding VAT, as the
obligation to pay such tax arises when the invoice is issued by the lessor and not on the date of

commencement of the lease.

For the execution of the stated calculation, lease payments must be discounted using agreed implicit
interest rate or, if not available, incremental interest rate The incremental interest rate is determined on
the basis of financing costs for liabilities of similar duration and similar security as those in the lease
agreement.In determining the lease term, the period of irrevocability set out in the contract must be taken
into account, during which the lessee is entitled to use the property in question, taking into account
potential renewal options, if the lessee is reasonably certain that he will renew. In particular, in refation to
those contracts that allow the lessee to tacitly renew the lease after the first set of years, the lease term is
determined taking into account factors such as the length of the first period, the existence of plans to

release the leased property and all other circumstances indicating reasonable security recovery.

3.9. Impairment of non-financial assets
Impairment of non-financial assets that have an indefinite useful time, and is not depreciated is reviewed

annually. Depreciated asset is reviewed for impairment when events or circumstances indicate that the

carrying amount may not be recovarable.

An impairment loss is recognized as the difference between the carrying amount and recoverable amount
of asset. Recoverable amount is fair value reduced by the cost of sale or the value of the asset in use,
whichever is higher. For the purpose of impairment test, asset is grouped at the lowest levels in order to

identify related cash flow. Non-financial assets are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at

each reporting date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.10. Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following categories: 'hold and collect' business model
and 'hold to collect and sell' business model. Classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial asset was acquired and on the risk management related to the acquisition of the asset.
Management classifies financial assets at initial recognition and assesses that classification at each
reporting date. Upon initial recognition, the Management Board allocates financial assets to business
models and accordingly conducts a test of contracted cash flows. Subsequent measurement

depends on the allocation and test of contracted cash flows.
Financial assets held within ‘hold and collect' business model

Financial assets held within 'hold and collect' business model represent non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or definable repayment and assets which are not listed on active market. They
are stated under current assets, except for assets with a maturity of more than 12 months after the
balance sheet date. Such assets are classified as non-current financial assets. Receivables are stated
at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Impairment test of these financial assets is
performed based on repayment delays in days. According to ageing receivables report the
Management Board makes a impairment decision based on historical losses and accounts for

expected credit losses that may occur due to non-payment.

Financial assets held within 'hold to collect and sell' business model

Einancial assets held within 'hold to collect and sell' business model, which are measured at fair
value through other comprehensive income, are non-derivative assets which are stated in this
category or which are not classified in another category and relate to shares listed on an active
market. Initially, these assets are measured at fair value plus transaction costs. At each
subsequent reporting date, fair value is measured, while investments in securities that are not
listed in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably determined are measured at its
acquisition costs. According to IFRS 9, these financial assets are not subject to impairment. The
Group has decided to measure these financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income, as it represents an investment in equity instruments which are not meant for trading.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.11. Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities include all financial liabilities that are not classified at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities include trade payables, borrowings and other liabilities. They are initially recognized at
fair value decreased by directly attributable transaction costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, interest-
bearing borrowings are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. The fair value of
an interest-free liability is its discounted repayment amount. If the maturity date of the liability is less than

one year, discounting is omitted.

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation is discharged or canceled or expires.

3.12. Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments include forward contracts and swap contracts (replacement of a variable
interest rate with a fixed one) in a foreign currency. Derivative financial instruments are recognized in the
balance sheet at their fair value. Fair values are determined according to stock market prices or through
pricing models, if such are applicable. All derivatives are recognized in the balance sheet as assets when
their fair value is positive and as a liability when their fair value is negative. These derivatives do not meet
the requirements of hedge accounting and are therefore treated as derivatives held for trading. Gains and
losses arising from a forecast transaction are recognized in profit or loss in the same period in which the

forecast transaction affects profit or loss.

3.13. Inventories

Inventories of raw material and spare parts are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.

Merchandise on stock is carried at the selling price net of accrued VAT and margin. Small items and tools

are written off when put in use.

3.14. Trade receivables and prepayments
Trade receivables and prepayments are recognised at amounts invoiced in accordance with the
underlying agreement, order, delivery note and other documents serving as the billing basis, reduced by

net value adjustment of uncollectible receivables

Trade receivables are measured initially at fair value and subsequently at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, reduced by value adjustment, which is applied in accordance with the

requrements of IFRS9.

a1



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.15. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash in hand and demand deposits as well as of other highly liquid

investments with maturities of three months or less.

3.16. Share capital and treasury shares
External costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares, other than on a business combination, are
deducted from equity, net of any related income taxes. Dividends on ordinary shares are recognised in

equity in the period in which they are declared.

Where the Group or its related Groups purchase the Group’s share capital or obtain rights to purchase its
share capital, the consideration paid including any attributable transaction costs net of income taxes is
shown as a deduction from total shareholders’ equity. Gains and losses on sale of own shares are

charged or credited to the share premium/discount account in equity.

3.17. Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Group's shareholders is recognized as liability in the financial statements in the
period in which they are approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

3.18. Earnings per share

Earnings per share are calculated by dividing profit and loss which belongs to the Group's shareholders
with the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

3.19. Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognized at fair value net of transaction costs. In future periods, borrowings are
stated at amortized cost; any differences between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value are recognized in the statement of comprehensive income over the period of the

borrowings, using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the loan contracting are recognized as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is
probable that some or all of the loan to be withdrawn. In that case, the fee is deferred until withdrawal. If
there is no evidence that part or all of the loan is likely to be withdrawn, the fee is capitalized as an

advance payment for liquidity services and amortized over the life of the loan to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an unconditional right to defer

settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the balance sheet date.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.20. Trade payables

Trade payables are amount related to purchased goods and services in the ordinary cours of
business. If payment is expected in one year, payables are recognized as current liabilities,
otherwise they are recognized as non-current liabilities.

Trade payables are initially recognized at fair value and are disclosed at amortized cost in future

periods using the effective interest method.

3.21. Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax
The current tax liability is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from the net profit for a

period reported in the statement of profit or loss because it excludes items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The

Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the balance sheet

date.

Deferred taxes
Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount

of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basis used in the

computation of taxable profit, and is accounted for using the balance sheet liability method.

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. No such assets and liabilities are recognised if the
temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all

or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities
and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in which the Group expects,

at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation

authority and the Group intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.21. Taxation (continued)

Current and deferred taxes for the period

Current and deferred tax are recognised as an expense or income in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items credited or debited directly to equity, in which case the tax is also recognised directly in
equity, or where they arise from the initial accounting for a business combination. In the case of a
business combination, the tax effect is taken into account in calculating goodwill or in determining the
excess of the acquirer's interest in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and

contingent liabilities over cost.

3.22, Maintenance and repairs

Cost of maintenance and repairs is recognised when incurred, except when expenditure incurred extends
the useful life of an asset and changes the capacity or purpose of property, plant and equipment. Such
expenditure is treated as improvement and is added to the carrying amount of tangible assets.

3.23. Retirement benefit costs

The Group provides long-service and retirement benefits to its employees, in accordance with the
underlying union agreement between the workers and the Group as their employer. The termination
benefit is a one-off benefit in the amount of HRK 8,000. The employees are entitled to long-service
benefits (jubilee awards), which are paid in accordance with the Personal Income Tax Act.

3.24. Provisions

Provisions are recognized only when the Group has a present obligation {legal or constructive) as a result
of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.
Where the effect of discounting is material, the amount of the provision is the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation, determined using the estimated risk-free
interest rate as the discount rate. Where discounting is used, the reversal of such discounting in each year

is recognized as interest expense,

3.25. Revenue recognition

Revenue consist of the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for services sold in hotels,
camps and restaurants during the Group's ordinary course of business. Revenues are recognized in

amounts net of value added tax.

The Group recognizes revenue when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, when the Group
will have future economic benefits and when the specific criteria for all the activities of the Group

described below are fulfilled.
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3 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

3.25. Revenue recognition (continued)

Service revenue

Revenues from completed hotel and turist sevices are recognized in the period in which the services are
completed. Revenue from services rendered to individual guests paying by credit card. - Credit card fees

are recognized as a reduction of revenue.

Rental income
Revenue from rental services is recognized in the period in which the services are rendered, using the

straight-line method over the term of the contract with the lessors.

Interest income

Interest income is recognized on a time proportion basis using the effective interest method. When the
value of a receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the carrying amount of the receivable to its
recoverable amount, which is the estimated value of expected cash inflows discounted at the
instrument's original effective interest rate. The steady abolition of discounts in future periods is
recognized as interest income. Interest income on loans whose collection is questionable is

recognized using the original effective interest method.

Dividend income

Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive payment is established.

3.26. Critical accounting estimates and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In applying the accounting policies, management is required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors

that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from those estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are continually reviewed. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the

period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

45



Notes to the consolidated financial statements
For the vear ended 31 December 2020

HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

4 GOODS AND SERVICE SALES

Revenues from sales of services abroad
Revenues from services in the country
Rental income

Other revenues

5 OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Revenue from state aid
Income from cancellation fees (downpayments)
Other operating income

2020 2019
2,902,789 29,833,550
4,372,559 11,427,300

306,338 408,100
274,956 48,446
7,856,642 41,717,396

2020 2019

3,424,518 50,883
102,443 1,599,526
366,862 1,694,523

3,893,823 3,334,932
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6 COST OF MATERIAL

Raw material, supplies and energy

Raw material and supplies
Small inventories and protective clothing
Energy

Cost of goods sold

External services

Utilities

Intellectual and personal services
The cost of assigning workers
Maintenance and repairs

Cost of mediation

Transportation, telephone, postage
Costs of advertising and propaganda
Rental cost

Other

7 SALARIES AND OTHER STAFF COSTS

Net salaries
Taxes and contributions from salaries
Taxes and contributions on salaries

2020 2019
1,342,828 8,005,299
135,948 729,415
561,868 2,017,236
2,040,644 10,751,950
374,579 81,844
947,898 2,298,977
1,215,471 3,292,130
77,631 5,211,471
409,770 1,520,614
157,016 981,329
211,781 264,870
15,342 90,344
17,849 109,059
117,500 594,257
3,170,258 14,363,051
5,585,481 25,196,845
2020 2019
5,483,625 7,318,421
1,964,390 3,070,932
1,102,918 1,622,968
8,550,933 12,012,321

At 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d. had 71 employees (31 December 2019: 85 employees).

8 DEPRECIATION

Depreciation is stated in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Profit for 2020 in the amount of
HRK 4.916.364 kuna (2019: HRK 5.015.242) and is calculated at the rates stated in Note 3.5 in addition to

the financial statements.
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9 OTHER EXPENSES

2020 2019

Insurance and security 247,278 370,865
Contributions, membership fees, taxes 119,887 191,375
Per diems and travel costs 171,438 358,130
Bank charges 57,967 127,468
Representation 50,804 231,315
Employee cost compensation 437,044 1,058,795
Costs of usage rights 57,729 170,794
Other expenses 127,804 328,472
1,269,951 2,837,214

10  PROVISIONS

Provisions stated in the Statement of Comprehensive Profit for 2020 in the amount of HRK 30,390,582
(2019: HRK 0) relate to provisions for ongoing litigation and for which, according to the Management
Board, there is a probable possibility of ending the dispute in 2021.

11 NET FINANCIAL (EXPENSE)INCOME

2020 2019
Financial income
Interest income — related Groups 1,079,590 1,201,789
Interest income - others 20,727 92,821
Realized exchange rate gains - 6,891
Total financial income 1,100,317 1,301,501
Financial expenses
Interest expense 27,746 29,018
Realized exchange rate loss 75,023 97,241
Value adjustments of financial assets /i/ 311,083 420,058
Total financial expense 413,852 546,317
Net financial (expense) / income 686,465 755,184
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12 INCOME TAX

The Group is a taxpayer under the laws and regulations of the Republic of Croatia. Income tax is
determined at the rate of 18% (2018: 18%) on the tax base prescribed by law. As at 31 December 2020,

based on tax balance sheets, the Group reported income tax in the amount of HRK 92,485.

Deferred tax assets are recognized as a deferred tax loss only to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the asset can be utilized. The benefits of tax losses are not
recognized in the consolidated financial statements due to the uncertainty of meeting the conditions for

their future use.

In accordance with the applicable regulations of the Republic of Croatia, the Tax Administration has the
right to review the business books and records of the Group for the year in which the tax liability is stated.
The Group's management is not aware of any circumstances that could give rise to potentially significant

tax liabilities.

13 LOSS PER SHARE

For the purposes of calculating earnings per share, earnings represent net income after taxation. The
number of ordinary shares is 107,115 in both amounts and the weighted number of shares (31.12.2019:
107,115 average number of ordinary shares and weighted number of shares). Loss per share in 2020

amounted to HRK 358.61 per share (2019: earning HRK 2.49 per share).
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Assets
In HRK La?d and Buildings Plgnt and under Total
orests equipment .
construction
/2*(’)'}%““ on Jan 1, 6,766,248 158,866,835 13,184,122 296,009 179,113,214
Sale/reclassification - - (202,628) (494,564) (697,192)
Procurement B - 227,658 584,388 318,635 1,130,681
ég}%“”t onDec31,  g766048 150,094,493 13,565,882 120,080 179,546,703
Accumulated
depreciation Jan 1, s 00,611,753 11,182,255 - 101,794,008
2019
Depreciation - 4,439,090 435,671 - 4,874,761
Sale i - (198,481) - (198,481)
gg}%“"t on Dec 31, . 95050,843 11,419,445 ; 106,470,288
Present value on
Dec 31, 2019 6,766,248 64,043,650 2,146,437 120,080 73,076,415
’2*(’)2%“"* on.Jan1, 6,766,248 159,094,493 13,565,882 120,080 179,546,703
Sale/reclassification - - (1,947,561) - (1,947,561)
Procurement - - 10,900 47,000 57,900
23;%”"‘ on Dec 31 6,766,248  159,094493 11,629,221 167,080 177,657,042
Accumulated
depreciation Jan 1, - 95,050,843 11,419,445 - 106,470,288
2020
Depreciation - 4,441,823 368,810 - 4,810,633
Sale s - (1,021,060) . (1,021,060)
g\g;%”"t on Dec 31, - 99492666 10,767,195 ; 110,259,861
Present value on 6,766,248 59,601,827 862,026 167,080 67,397,181

Dec 31, 2020
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14 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The Group's Management Board estimates that, as at 31 December 2020, there are no indications that

the market value of property, plant and equipment is lower than the book value, there have been no

significant changes in technological, economic or legal conditions that would have a significant impact on

value of assets, so taking into account the fact of a high degree of write-off of buildings there is no basis

for reducing their book value.

15  NON-CURRENT FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES

Principal

Approved
Jelsa d.d., Jelsa HRK 154.033
ADRIATIQ ISLANDS
GROUP d.d. HRK 352.123
BATUDA PROJEKT d.o.o. HRK 588.533
AIG YACHTING d.o.0. HRK 40.000
Interes

Other receivables

16 INVENTORIES

Small inventory
Material and spare parts
Merchandise

17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Receivables from foreign customers
Receivables from domestic customers
Impairment of trade receivables

Interest
rate applied

3,96%
3,96%

3,96%
3,96%

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
154,033 154,033
275,364 352,123
588,534 588,533

40,000 40,000
155,253 167,741
18,515 38,876
1,231,699 1,341,306

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

426,261 114,924
- 552,656
- 7,373
426,261 674,953

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
891,339 1,009,665
713,445 221,508

(221,878) (221,878)
1,382,906 1,009,295
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17 TRADE RECEIVABLES

The age structure of customer receivables is presented in the following table:

Past due
From 90
Up to 30 From 31 to Over 365
Total Not yet due days 90 days t% 365 days
ays
31.12.2020 1,382,906 34,058 7,552 15,925 517,897 807,474
31.12.2019 1,009,295 31,441 37,268 916,545 24,042 -

The Group's management believes that the value of receivables is not lower than the stated values.

18 OTHER CURRENT RECEIVABLES

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Due from the state 1,058,838 1,374,319
Receivables from employees 22,564 25,178
Other claims 2,301,326 91,600
Receivables from affiliated companies 2,104 4,860,195
3,384,831 6,351,292
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19. CURRENT FINANCIAL RECEIVABLES

ADRIATIQ ISLANDS GROUP
d.d., Zagreb

ADRIATIQ ISLANDS GROUP
HOTELI d.o.o0., Zagreb
DIAMANT MARINA d.o.0.,
Zagreb

AQUAMARINE d.o.0., Zagreb

DALMACIJA CHARTER d.o.0.,
Primosten

DALMACIA HOLIDAY kft,
Budaspest

TOPAZ d.0.0., Zagreb

CAMENA d.o.o., Zagreb
ADRIATIQ ISLANDS GROUP
NEKRETNINE d.o.o0., Zagreb

JELSA d.d., Jelsa

ORNATUS d.0.0., Zagreb

CIRUS d.o.0., Primosten

DALMACIA HOLIDAY d.o.o.,
Zagreb

DANUVIUS RESTORAN d.0.0.,

Tribunj
PRIMOSTEN d.d., Primo3ten
Natural person

Interest

Value adjustment of loans and

interest rates

Approved
Principal

1,697,007
HRK

81,604 HRK

22,300,616
HRK
2,146,450
HRK

613,630 HRK

384,226 HRK

323,164 HRK
50,000 HRK

6,122 HRK

4,991,694
HRK

25,000 HRK
50,000 HRK

130,000 HRK

95,000 HRK
126,250 HRK
246,000 HRK

Applied
Interest rates

3,96%
3,96%
3,96%
3,96%
3,96%

3,96%

3,96%
3,96%

3,96%

3,96%

3,96%
3,96%

3,96%

3,96%

3,96%
2%

Changes in the value adjustment of receivables from financial assets are as follows:

Balance on January 1st

(Decrease) / increase in imparment

As of December 31

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
1,697,007 1,473,007
- 81,604
22,300,616 22,300,616
2,146,450 2,146,450
- 613,630

- 384,226

- 323,164

50,000 50,000
6,122 6,122
4,991,694 4,991,694
25,000 25,000
50,000 50,000
130,000 130,000
95,000 95,000
126,250 126,250
224,609 246,000
3,000,252 95,635
(6,122) (870,150)
34,836,878 32,268,248
2020 2019
(870,150) (2,817,000)
864,028 1,946,850
(6,122) (870,150)

The Group provided short-term loans to affiliated companies at an interest rate of 3.96% per annum. The

Group has receivables from associated companies for loans and interest in the amount of HRK
34,836,878. Receivables are older than 365 days, debtor companies are bankrupt or have little business
activity, there was no demand turnover throughout the year and the Group has no instruments to secure

the collection of receivables.
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Current account balance
Foreign currency account balance
Cash in hand

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
183.035 1.068.780

- 886.451

10.975 74.394
194.010 2.029.625

Cash equivalents comprise cheques and deposits with banks, which are available at call (ie deposits

placed for a term of up to 3 months).

The Group's account is opened at Privredna banka Zagreb d.d., Zagreb and OTP banka d.d., Split.

21 SHARE CAPITAL

Sh?re Capital Total

capital gains
Balance at 1 January 2019 74,980,500 173,442 75,153,942
Balance at 31 December 2019 74,980,500 173,442 75,153,942
Balance at 31 December 2020 74,980,500 173,442 75,153,942

The Group's share capital amounts to HRK 74,980,500.00. The total number of ordinary shares in issue at
the year-end was 107,115 (31 December 2019 107,115 shares), with a nominal value of HRK 700.00

each (2019: HRK 700.00).

The ownership structure at the balance sheet was as follows:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Number of Number of

Shareholder shares % shares %
Topaz d.o.0., Zagreb 92,717 86.56 92,717 86.56
Centar za restrukturiranje i prodaju (CERP),
Republic of Croatia el 0.79 2,495 233
Other shareholders (total) 13,557 12.66 11,903 11.11

107,115 100 107,115 100
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22 RESERVES AND ACCUMULATED LOSSES

Retained
Profit f
Legal Other (loss) / the ?u:re:: Total
reserves reserves retained ear

earnings y
On January 1, 2019 3,770,050 12,064,778 (759,242) 2,948,560 18,024,146
Coverage of transferred
loss from profit from - - 2,948,560 (2,948,560) -
2018.
Profit for 2019 - - - 267,220 267,220
:‘;13" 31 December 3,770,050 12,064,778 2,189,318 267,220 18,291,366
Transfer of profits from
2019 to retained earnings ) ) 267,220 (267.220) )
Other ownership changes  (2,970,050) (12,064,778) 15,034,828 - -
Loss for 2020 : . - (38412,684) (38,412,684)
Situation as on 31 800,000 ; 17,491,366  (38,412,684) (20,121,318)

December 2019

23. PROVISIONS

During 2021, the Group expects the completion of enforcement proceedings against real estate owned by
the Group as a debtor in the proceedings, and based on the enforcement document - Agreement to
secure a monetary claim by establishing a lien, stated the cost of provisions in the amount of market value

of real estate determined by an independent appraiser.
The Group, as a guarantor-payer in the enforcement proceedings over free cash, also stated provisions in
the amount of the present value of future outflows of free cash of the Group.

In accordance with the above, the Management Board of the Group made a decision to disclose

provisions in the amount of HRK 30,390,582.
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24  LIABILITIES FOR GIVEN LOANS

Principal
approved
Ministry of finance, Croatia
Marina Kremik d.o.o. 905.817 HRK
Dalmacia Holiday d.o.o. 618.822 HRK

Interest

Applied
interest rate

2,5%
7%

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
1,643,909 1,643,209
1,205,817 300,000

6,833 6,833
102,511 8,821
2,959,070 1,959,563

On 3 August 2011 the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Croatia adopted a Resolution on the
Reprogramming of the Tax Debt of Hoteli Jadran d.d., Gradac, which amounted to HRK 3,343,350.70 at
31 December 2010. The loan repayment period is 30 months, and the loan interest rate is 8.30 percent
annually. At 31 December 2019, the tax debt amounts to HRK 1,643,909 and is confirmed in the pre-
bankruptcy settlement procedure by Finacial Agency (FINA), Regional Center Zagreb on 6 June 2018
(Note 1). The debt in question is regulated by a pre-bankruptcy settlement, which is yet to be confirmed by

Commercial Court.

A short-term one-year loan was obtained from Dalmacia Holiday d.o.0., Zagreb, for liquidity purposes. The
loan interest rate is 7.00 percent annually. The loan balance at 31 December 2020 amounts to HRK

6,833.

25 TRADE PAYABLES

Domestic trade payables
Foreign trade payables
Late-payment interest on trade payables

26. LIABILITIES FOR ADVANCES

Liabilities for received advances

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
10,488,967 12,526,863
272,559 70,546
975,877 975,877
11,737,403 13,573,286
31.12.2020 31.12.2019
6,222,878 5,125,009
6,222,878 5,125,009
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27  OTHER LIABILITIES

Value added tax liabilities

Payroll taxes and contributions from salary
Contributions on salary

Corporate income tax

Obligations for membership fees and other fees
Other liabilities

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
608,757 382,400
107,273 232,519

64,029 119,653
19,891 3,676
1,428,737 1,547,113
97,323 36,119
2,316,010 2,321,480

28 RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

For financial reporting purposes, parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control
the other party, if the parties are under joint control, or if a party may exercise significant influence over
the other party in making financial and operating decisions. In considering each potential relationship
between related parties, the focus is on the substance of the relationship rather than merely the legal

form.
Trade Trade Given Borrowing Expenses Income
receivables payables loans and s and
advances interest
payable
Parent: _ R 2,105 - - 10,378
Topaz d.o.o.
Other
subsidiaries: i i B N B 274,956
Management
Board - - - - 745,302 -
Balance at 31
December 2020 - - 2,105 - 745,302 285,334
Balance at 31
December 2019 534 1,079,246 36,268,766 78,527 2,316,711 1,204,694

29  CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND ASSETS

a) Contingent liabilities

Legal actions. As of December 31, 2020, there have been several lawsuits regarding property rights, real
estate, and business relationships in which the Group is a defendant. The lawsuits relate to unresolved

assets, determination of property rights, payment of the Group and the Group as a guarantor.

The Group issued a guarantee in favor of Dalmacia Holiday kft in the amount of EUR 21,524,970.87,
increased by interest, fees, expenses, commissions and other costs for the Raiffeisen Bank loan. By the
contract on the purchase and sale of receivables dated April 2, 2019 concluded between Raiffeiseisen
Bank Zrt. and Bohemian Financing Zrt., all rights and obligations have been transferred to the new

creditor, Bohemian Financing Zrt.
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The Group has issued a guarantee in favor of Habito d.o.o. in the amount of EUR 2,625,000 increased by
interest, fees, costs, commissions and other costs, pursuant to Annex | of the Agreement on financial
leasing of real estate. Contract on purchase and sale of receivables dated May 30, 2018 concluded
between Optima Leasing d.o.0. and Bohemian Financing Zrt., all rights and obligations have been

transferred to the new creditor Bohemian Financing Zrt..

b) Contingent assets

Legal actions. At 31 December 2020 there were several legal actions filed by the Group on the grounds

of ownership title and enforcement.

30. INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note provides details of the Group's exposure to risks and describes the methods used by
management to manage risks. The most significant types of financial risks to which the Group is exposed
are credit risk, liquidity risk and market risk. Market risk includes exchange rate risk, interest rate risk and

price risk.

Capital risk management

Gearing ratio

The gearing ratio at the year-end was as follows:

31.12.2020 31.12.2019
Debt 2,959,070 1,959,563
Cash and cash equivalents 194,010 2,029,625
Net debt 2,765,060 (70,062)
Equity 55,032,624 93,445,308
Net debt-to-equity ratio 5,02% -

Debt is defined as a liability for long-term and short-term loans. The principal includes all capital and all

reserves.

Categories of financial instruments

Financial assets
31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Cash and cash equivalents 194,010 2,029,625
Trade receivables 1,382,906 1,009,295
Given loans 36,068,577 33,590,804
Other receivables 3,384,831 6,351,292

41,030,324 42,981,016

58



Notes to the consolidated financial statements

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HOTELI JADRAN d.d., Gradac

30. INANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities

31.12.2020 31.12.2019

Loans and borrowings 2,959,070 1,959,563
2,959,070 2,959,070

Foreign currency risk management
The Group is exposed to currency risks because it has significant assets contracted in foreign currency.

The Group is mainly exposed to changes in the EUR exchange rate because a significant part of trade
receivables and income, as well as cash, is denominated in this currency.

The following table shows the carrying amounts of the Group's monetary assets and monetary liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date.

Liabilities Assets
31.12.2020 31.12.2019 31.12.2020 31.12.2019
EUR 41,449 69,593 1,470,078 1,897,879

Interest rate risk management

The Group's operations are subject to the risk of interest rate fluctuations to the extent that the interest-
bearing assets and liabilities mature or reprice at different times or in differing amounts. Variable-interest
bearing assets and liabilities of the Group are also exposed to the basis risk, which is the difference in re-

pricing characteristics of the various floating rate indices.

The Group is not exposed to interest rate risk arising from variable rates, as disclosed in Notes 24.

Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the Management Board, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Group’s short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity requirements. The Group manages its liquidity using appropriate bank

overdrafts and facilities and by matching the maturities of its financial assets and liabilities.
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30  FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities are determined as follows:

« the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities subject to standard terms and conditions and
traded on active liquid markets is determined by reference to quoted market prices;

« the fair value of other financial assets and financial liabilities (excluding derivative instruments) is
determined in accordance with generally accepted pricing models based on discounted cash flow
analysis using prices from observable current market transactions and dealer quotes for similar
instruments;

o the fair value of derivative instruments is calculated using quoted prices. Where such prices are not
available, discounted cash flow analysis is applied using the applicable yield curve for the duration of
the instruments for non-optional derivatives, and option pricing models for optional derivatives; and

« the fair value of financial guarantee contracts is determined using option pricing models where the
main assumptions are the probability of default by the counterparty extrapolated from market-based

credit information and the amount of the loss given defauit.

31 ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

It is the policy of the Group to ensure an on-going environmental awareness among its employees as well
as their commitment to protecting and improving the natural as well as their work environment

32. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING DATE

The most significant event this year is the appearance of the COVID-19 virus at the end of February 2020.
In accordance with the new circumstances and government measures, the Group, as a lessor due to
these exceptional circumstances and uncertainties, agreed to suspend lease agreements for the hotel
"Faraon” and hotel ' "Laguna" since the hotels will not operate in 2020. The Group actively monitors all
information related to the spread of coronavirus, especially in emitting markets and takes all protection
measures recommended by the Ministry of Health and the Institute of Public Health. The Group, in
cooperation with the social partners, regulated the material rights during the time when it is not working,
and it started negotiations with other partners in order to revise the amount and compensation for the
period when the operational activity will be absent. In April, the Government of the Republic of Croatia
announced a state aid program to combat the negative effects of Covid-19 on the economy. As part of the
program, the Group applied for employment protection measures and received support for job
preservation. In addition to the above measure, the Group has approved a measure of deferral of payment
of certain tax liabilities. After the Management Board reviewed the current operations, the process of
streamlining the Group's operations was initiated, so that the Group with a long tradition of hotel business

dating back to 1955 could face the challenges of the current pandemic in the most efficient way. Due to
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difficult and uncertain business conditions caused by the COVID-19 pandemic and the poor results of the
tourist season, the Group decided to manage costs in a centralized manner. The Group expects that this
will enable cost reduction, more efficient staff mobility that corresponds to the current very volatile demand
for accommodation capacities and an increase in the quality of service. The process of rationalization
began with the takeover of employees of the Groups that leased the hotels Labineca and Laguna in

Gradac and Faraon in Trpanj, and later with the termination of the lease agreement with the current

tenants.

33  APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were adopted and authorised for issue by the members of the

Management Board of Hoteli Jadran d.d., Gradac, on 16 April 2021.

= £
Cecilia Nikoletta Fata Soma Zoltan Dala
President of the Management Board Member of the Management Board
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
for the period 01.01.2020 to 31.12.2020

|'OPERATING INCOME (ADP 126 to 130) N : : S - 45062.328] ‘ 750.465
1 Income from sales with undertakings within the group .
2 Income from sales (outS|de group) 41.588.362 7.814.726
3 Income from the use of own products, goods and services 129.034 , 41.916
4 Other operating income with undertakmgs within the group .
5 Other operating income (outside the group) b 3.344.932f 3.893.823
Il OPERATING EXPENSES (ADP 132+133+137+141+142+143+146+153) 45,348,545 ' 50.757.129
1 Changes in inventories of work i in progress and fmshed goods o o 0
2 Matenal costs (ADP 134 to 136) o ,25 196 845 [ BRI 5 585 481
a) Costs of raw material 10 751 950 - 2 040 644
b) Costs of goods sold  81.844 ] 374‘ 579
_¢) Other external costs 14.363.051]  3.170.258
3 Staffcosts (ADP 13810 140) 2012321 8550933
a) Net salaries and wages _7.318. 421 ; , 5 483.625
b) Tax and contributions from salaries expenses 3 070 932 o 964 3980
c) Contnbutlons on salanes ) o 1, 102 918
4 Depreciation o ) 5.015.242 4.916.364
5 Other expenses 2.837.214 1.269.951
6 Value adjustments (ADP 144+145) 28137, 5209
&) fixed assets other than financial assets 0 0
b) current assets other than f nancral assets 26137 5.209
7Provisions (ADP 147 10162) 0 £ 30.390.582
a) Prowsmns for pens:ons termmat/on benefi ts and SImlIar obllgat/ons 0 0
b) Provisions for tax liabilities o] 0
_¢) Provisions for ongoing legal cases , ol 30.390.582
_d) Provisions for renewal of natural resources 0 k o
__¢) Provisions for warranty obligations o 0
1) Other provisions ) 0
8 Other operatung expenses , ;‘ ' “26‘0;78? """""" i, 22 D0
Il FINANCIAL INCOME (ADP 15510 164) X 1301501 11100317
1 lncome from mvestments in holdmgs (shares) of undenakmgs wnthm 155 0 0
the group
2 Income from investments in holdings (shares) of companies linked by 1 5'6“ B . 0 - 0
vmue of participating interest
3 Income from other long-term financial investment and loans granted to 157 0 0
undenakmgs wrthm the group
gmﬁ pOther mterest mcome from operauons wuth undertakmgs within the 158 1.196.473 639.543
5 Exchange rate differences and other financial income from operations ] 159 1T ' 0 o O
with undertakings within the group
6 income from other long-term financial investments and loans ' 160 |
7 Other interest income 161 ' 5316] 440.047
8 Exchange rate differences and other financial i income o 162 ' - 92.821) ' 20.727
9 Unrealised gains (income) from financial assets ‘ 163 0 o
10 Other fmarcial income SSURRRUUPIRUNUR I A0 ANU ST T S
IV FINANCIAL EXPENDITURE (ADP 16616 172) | 188 | 548317 - 413852
1 Interest expenses and similar expenses with undertakings within the | '
group 166 0 0
2 Exchange rate differences and other expenses from operations with 167 ' o 0 S 0
undertakings within the group ; , , L e
3 Interest expenses and similar expenses 168 29.018 27.746
4 Exchange rate differences and other expenses ” 169 o 97.241 75.023
~ 5 Unrealised losses (expenses) from financial assets ' 170 o o N 0
6 Value ad;ustments of fnancsal assets (net) o m | 420.058] ~311.083
” 7 Other fnancnal oxpenses R e T R EE o e 5




XiV PRE-TAX PROFIT OR LOSS OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS
(ADP 187-188)

1 Pre- tax prof it from discontinued operatzons

" 2 Pre-tax loss on discontinued operations
XV INCOME TAX OF DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

V  SHARE IN PROFIT FROM COMPANIES LINKED BY VIRTUE OF 173 0 0
PARTICIPATING INTEREST
VI SHARE IN PROFIT FROM JOINT VENTURES 174 o 0
Vil SHARE IN LOSS OF COMPANIES LINKED BY VIRTUE OF 175 0 0
PARTICIPATING INTEREST
VIll SHARE IN LOSS OF JOINT VENTURES w | e 6
IX TOTAL INCOME (ADP 125+154+173 + 174) , 177 46,363,829 12.850.782
X TOTAL EXPENDITURE (ADP 131+165+175+ 176) | 178 45.894.862 51.170.981
XI PRE-TAX PROFIT OR LOSS (ADP 177-178) 179 468.967 -38.320.199
1 Pre-tax profit (ADP 177-178) o8 | 468967 0
2 Pre-tax loss (ADP 178-177) 181 0] -38.320.199
XIl INCOME TAX 182 201.747 92.485
Xili PROFIT OR LOSS FOR THE PERIOD (ADP 179-182) 183 ) -38.412.684
1 Profit for the period (ADP 179-182) o 0
2 Loss for the period (ADP 182-179) -38.412.684

Do oo o

"1 Pre-tax proﬁ (ADP 192)
’2’ Ffre -tax loss (ADP 192)
XVII INCOME TAX (ADP 182+189)

va PROFIT OR LOSS:FOR THE PERIOD (ADP 192- 195)
1 Profit for the period (ADP.192-195) =

2 l.oss for the period (ADP 195-192)

COoO0OoO0 0o

267.220

-38.412.684

Il OTHER COMPREHENSIVE PROFIT/LOSS BEFORE TAX

0

0

..-38.412.684

(ADP 204 to 211) O M 2 0
1 Exchange rate differences from translation of foreign operations 204 . .0
2 Changes in revaluation reserves of fixed tangible and intangible assets 205 0 0
3 Profit or loss arising from re-evaluation of financial assets available foF e N ‘
sale 206 0
4 Profit or loss arising from effective cash flow hedging 207 'l
5 Profit or loss arising from effective hedge of a net investment in a 208 0
forengn operatlon ; - N
6 Share in other comprehens:ve incomefloss of companies linked by 209 0 0
virtue of participating interest ;
7 Actuarial gams/|osses on defined remuneration plans ; 210 , 0] 0
8 Other changes in equity unrelated to owners 211 0 0
1l TAX ON OTHER COMPREHENSlVE |NCOME FOR THE PER!OD 212 0 0
v NET OTHER COMPREHENS! E;I LOSS (ADP 203-212) 1 0

V. COMPREHENS!VE lNCOME ORLOSS FOR THE PERIOD (ADP
202+213) , ,

214

38412684

Vico

216+217) 2185 267.220 ‘ -38.412.684
1 Attributable to owners of the parent o 216 267.220 ~ -38.412.684
2 Attributable to mmonty (non-controlling) interest 217 0 0




STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - indirect method
for the period 01.01.2020 . to 31.12.2020.

xxxxx

FRL PR E

B o1 [ 468.967 -38.320.199
2 Adjustments (ADP 003 to 010): 02 | 4007.152 34.260.311
a) Depreciation | 00 5015242 4916364
b} Gains and losses from sale and value adjustment of fixed tangible
; . 004 0 0
and intangible assets
¢) Gains and losses from sale and unrealised gains and losses and 005 0 0
value adjustment of financial assets
d) Interest and dividend income 006 | 1201789  -1.079.590
e) Interest expenses - B | o7 | 20018 27746
f) Provisions | oes | ol 30.390.562
9) Exchange rate differences (unrealised) | o } o 0
h) Other adjustments for non-cash transactions and unreallsed gams 010 164.681 5209
and losses
I Cash flow. lncrease or.decrease before changes in the worklng” o ’ . -4.'059,888
3Changes in the workmg capttal (ADP. 01}} to 016) ' ‘ 012 o 3886831 1702736
a) Increase or decrease ln short-term liabilities 013 4.421.835 ‘ ] -11.462
b) Increase or decrease in short-term receivables 014 2421898 ~2.399.439
c) Increase or decrease in inventories | o5 |  .86583 248692
d) Other increase or decrease in the working capital 1 016 L 973 475 o —933 933
Il Cash from operations (ADP 011+012) e 8.362.950 -2.357.152
4 Interest paid 018 -20.824 0

5 Income tax pa!d 019 -968.664| 188‘202

-2.168.950

1 Cash receipts from sales of fixed tangible and intangible assets 021 0 0
2 Cash receipts from sales of financial instruments ’ | 022 | 0
3 Interest received e B o ) 023 17
4 Dividends received 024 0
5 Cash receipts from repayment of loans and deposits - 025 1.285
6 Other cash receipts from investment activities ’ 026 0
tal cz s (ADP 02110026) | 027 | | 1.402

1 Cash payments for the purchase of fixed tangible and intangible assets 028 -907.469 -47.000
2 Cash payments for the acqu»smon of financial instruments o 029 | : ' ) ', - 0 ‘ k 0
3 Cash payments for loans and deposns for the period 030 -6.395.085) - -17.088
4 Acquisition ofa subs1dtary, net of cash acquired o , 031 0 0

’ ‘SOther cash payments from investment activities o '032 1 0 0

1 Cash recetpts trom the increase of initial (subscribed) capital k 5 | o
2 Cash receipts from the issue of equity fi f nancial instruments and debt 036 0
financial instruments
3 Cash receipts from credit principals, loans and other borrowings | e | 905.817
4 Other cash rece:pts from fi nancmg act:vntres 038 ) 0
t from fin : “'ttaf}(ADP 035 to oss) | e | 905817
1 Cash payments for the repayment of credlt pnncupals Ioans and other o -
. borrowings and debt financial instruments RSTUURR R 049 N 0 -509'85?




2 Dividends paid

041 9 0
3 Cash payments for finance lease 042 0 0
4 Cash payments for the redemptnon of treasury shares and decrease of 043 0 0
’ initial (subscnbed) capital
~ 5 Other cash payments from financing actsvmes 044 0 0
Vi Total cash payments from ﬁnancing activities (ADP 04010 044) 045 - o -~ -509.856
C) NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (ADP 039 +045) 046 ol 395’.96'1'
1 Unrealised exchange rate differences in cash and cash equnvalents R 047 ] 0 0
D) NET INCREASE OR DECREASE OF CASH FLOWS (ADP '
020403440 46 +047) 048 74.183 -1.835.675
E) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF PERIOD 049 1.955.442 2.029.685
F) CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF PERIOD(ADP | . ~

048+049)

2.029.625|

194.010
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